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notes to the reader

This 1s the Annual Report for the year 2014 of

ABN AMRO Clearing Bank N V The Annua!l Report
consists of the Managing Board report, Supervisory
Board report, the Annual Financial Staternents and
other information

The financial nfarmation contained in this Annual Report
has been prepared in accordance with International
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the Eurcpean
Union {(EU)

This Annual Report s presented in euros {EUR)

Due to rounding, numbers presented throughout this
document may not add up precisely to the totals
provided and percentages may not precisely reflect
the absolute figures

For more information please visit us at
abnamrocleaning com
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ABN AMRO Clearing Bank N V (AACB) 1s a wholly owned
subsidiary of ABN AMRQ Bank N V The financial statements
of AACB are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements of ABN AMRO Group N V {AAG) The legal entity
AACB is part of the business unit ABN AMRQ Ciearing

The AACB operating model 1s, where possible, self-
supporting due to the nature of business, where speed
and responsivenass are critical and regulators and chents
expect separation of cleanng activities from general
banking activities The clearing activities are therefore
undertaken out of AACB, a dedicated legal entity that
has a banking licence and i1s regulated under the Single
Supervisory Mechamsm implemented in November 2014
As of that date the European Central Bank is responsible
for AACB's supervision

AACR plays an important faciitating and processing role
in the global caprtal markets, creating efficiency in the value
chains of everyday products and making the financial
system more efficient, transparent and robust

Operating

wncome 2014
EUR 337m

. Europe . Asia . America

M ewrope I Asa WD Amenca

A8

ABN AMRO Clearing

ata glance

History

The AACB concept was established in 1982 1n Amsterdam
At a later stage clearing sites were opened In London,
Heng Kong, Sydney, Chicago, Singapore, Tokyo and Sao
Paulo ameng other locations

Business model

AACB covers the full market chain from market access
and execution services to clearing, settlement and
multi-product asset servicing on a global basis We offer
24-hour/5-day global services across multiple asset classes
In additton, we provide collateralised financing and
securities borrowing and lending services 1o our chients
With a top-three ranking based on turnover and global
market share, AACB plays a important role in supporting
the global financial infrastructure

tra\fles clearea-

Proprietary Traders
Clearing Firm
of the year 2014

Amarncas Europe Asia & Pacific
Chicago Amsterdam Hong Kong
Szo Paulp Frankfurt Singapore
London Sydnay
Parg Tokyo
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2014 was a good year for AACB, with record high operating
income, largely due 10 the sale of the majority stake in
Holland Clearing House to Intercontinental Exchange
But even normalised for the latter, AACB had a favourable
year as a result of strong interest results and stable fee
and commission Income

In 2014 we saw a continuing trend of declirming interest
rates and initially a lowering of cleared volumes on most
exchanges However, in the second half of the year market
activity picked up driven by a nse in volatlity due to the
Ukraine conflict, democracy protests in Hong Keng, concerns
over the Eurozone economic outlook, the rouble crisis
and increased tensions In the Middle East

Cost increased, in large part due to the need to keep
pace with regulatory change, improved customer
due-diligence and enhanced nisk controls Cost discipline
and ensuring that we operate as effectively as possible
1s key for the long term success of our company As a
result, AACB initiated the operations offshoring program
in 2013, amed at improving of our {custody) operations,
which was rolled out during 2014 This restructunng
affected a large part of our staff in the Netherlands and
finalisation 1s foreseen in the second quarter of 2015
Also, after reviewing our legal operating structure, we
decided to cease our activities in our Brussels branch

During the year we further strengthened our internal
control framework and nisk monitoring capabilities and
tightened our systems and processes in order to protect our
clients and to create an even safer financial infrastructure
AACB participated in several consultations and
implemented new regulatory requirements on a global
basis This put considerable strain on our operations and
involved a great deal of additional work and costs

Commercially, our focus in Europe was on retaiming
market leadership, while in the United States and Asia
further growth was achieved We rolled out our energy

and commodities clearing product worldwide and started
up a presence In Brazil in order to expand our service
model and provide new opportunities to our clients

We introduced a new product management organisation,
dedicated to expand and improve our products and sevice
offering, such that we are even better equipped for further
facihitating our clients

As a consequence of the intensified focus on nisk
Management and product development, we decided to
expand the managing board of AACB by welcoming both
B Cumnstra and A Bolkovic in their roles of, respectively,
Chief Risk Officer and Head of Products & Services
Both have extensive experience, and their valuable
knawledge will help us further In achieving the strategic
goals of AACB

Future developments

Unpredictable developments ansing from ongoing
geopolitical tensions, additional regulatory costs, Eurozone
membership uncertainties, currency and commeodity
price ahignments and interest rates moves could all affect
the economic performance of our company However,
we will continue to build on the progress made 1n 2014
Strict cost and nisk control combined with greater focus
on new (product) Initiatives, together with further growth
in our principal trading groups and the corporate hedges
segment and a gradual build-up In the pnime market,
should ensure sustainable growth We have our sights
set on the future and are working to make our clients
globally competitive

Qur focus on streamlined processes will continue to be
key Iin 2015 This will entall mplementing and migrating
towards a single multi-asset clearing platform providing
consistent product capabilities globally and further
improving our efficiency In additton, we will start rolling
out Customer Excellence {CE) across the organisation,
combining customer focus with operational excellence
CE 1s based on Lean Management principles and helps

@



6 < Letter from the Managing Board

improve the satisfaction of both chents and employees
Moreover, our efforts to standardise and globalise our

IT landscape and the implementation of a new product
management organisation are designed to improve chent
servicing and boost the profitability of our business,
although the benefits of these measures are only
expected to emerge from 2016 onwards

We have once again achieved a great deal in 2014 —and
none of 1t would have been possible without the dedication
and hard work of our highly motivated employees We
would hke to thank them for their ongoing commitment
and vital contribution to our success

We would also like to thank our customers for therr
continuing trust and loyalty 1n our bank

Amsterdam, 21 May 2015

f

MC Jongmans, e
JBM de Boer (b

Managing Board

M C Jongmans, Chairman

JB M de Boer, Chief Commaercial Officer

A Bolkovic, Global Head Products & Services
B Duinstra, Chief Risk Officer

L.M R. Vanbocknjck, Chief Financial Officer

ABN AMRO Clearing Bank NV,

registered 1n Amsterdam

Gustav Mahlerlaan 10, 1082 PP Amsterdam,
The Netherlands

Trade Regster entry no 33170459
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supervisory hoard
report

Composition of the Supervisory Board

A description of the duties and responsitilities of the
Supervisory Board including the procedures for appontment,
suspension and dismissal 1s provided in the Governance
section of this report

The Supervisory Board generally assesses its composition
as adequate especally with regard to expertise The
Supervisory Board believes that, as a whole, 1t possesses
sufficient knowledge, expertise and experience to
adequately perform its duties

All members of the Supervisory Board hold senior
executive positions within ABN AMRO The composition of
the Supervisory Board changed in 2014, as two members
{J Ketelaar and F Woelders) stepped down and were
replaced by two new members (A Rahusen and FM R
van der Harst) As of 19 February 2015 J ter Avest has
stepped down as Chairman of the Supervisory Board
and has been replaced by RVC Schellens An overview
of the current composition of the Superwvisory Board

1s provided under the heading ‘Composition of the
Supervisory Board' on page 80

Supervisory Board meetings

The Supervisory Board met on four occasions In 2014
tn plenary scheduled meetings All plenary scheduled
meetings were held in the presence of the members of
the Managing Board and the Company Secretary Other
members of senior managerment were regularly invited
to present specific topics

Two plenary meetings were attended by all members of
the Supervisory Board, two meetings were attended by
four members

Outside the Supervisory Board meetings, members of
the Supervisory Beard and the Managing Board were

In contact on a regular basis The Chairman and the
Company Secretary prepared the agenda for the plenary
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8 < Supervisory Board report

scheduled meetings of the Supervisory Board in 2014
Regular agenda items included financial performance, nsk
management, compliance and regulation, audit findings,
market and regulatory developments and strategy

A more detaited description of the matters discussed 1s
provided below

The company’s tinancial performance was discussed
during the Supervisory Board meetings at the end of
each quarter Information provided by the Managing
Board with the assistance of internal and external auditors
gave the Supervisory Board a picture of the company’s
nsks, results, and capital and hquidity positions Durning its
meeting in May 2015, the Supervisory Board reviewed
the Annual Report 2014 and the Financial Statements
2014 The Superwisory Board evaluated and chiscussed
these documents with the Managing Board, ABN AMRO
Group Audit and KPMG (the independent external auditor}
and took note of the independent auditor’s report 1ssued
by KPMG on the Financial Statements 2014

Throughout the year, the Supervisory Board monitored
the implementation of the strategy going forward and
supported the Managing Board in 1ts efiort to put clients’
interests first, maintain a moderate nsk profile and
implement the long-term strategy The Superwisory Beard
challenged the Managing Board on AACB's performance,
audit findings, nsk management and strategic plans
AACB’s RAG Risk Management Report, which 1s provided
to the Supervisory Board on a regular basis, served as
the basis for a number of discussions on the key risks
run by AACB

The Managing Board regularly informed the Supervisory
Board about intended organisational changes, strategic
inttiatives and incidents that had occurred

Corporate governance

Corporate governance was further strengthened in 2014
The new members of the Supervisory Board took the
Bankers' Oath in 2014 The oath 15 a confirmation of
ABN AMRO's existing policy, which 1s fully in line with
the business principles and core values of ABN AMRO

Permanent education for the Supervisory Board has
been put In place and 1s designed to keep its members’
expertise up to date and to broaden and deepen their
knowledge where necessary As all members of the
Supervisory Board are members of the Management
Group of ABN AMRO (being a group of Senior Managers
positioned in the management layers below the Managing
Board level of ABN AMRQO), Supervisory Board members
are invited 1o participate in the lifelong learning programme
of ABN AMRO In addition, AACB regularly organises
informative workshops for Supervisory Board members
to ensure a balanced programme that covers relevant
aspects of AACB s performance and takes into account
current developments in the clearing industry

ABN AMRO apphes the Banking Code’s principles on nsk
appetite, nsk pohcy and nsk management on a consohdated
basis Consequently, AACB does not have separate
committees of the Supervisory Board {1 e audit, Risk or
remuneration committee} At least once a year, ABN AMRO
Group Audit and the external auditor attend a meeting of
the Supervisory Board

Amsterdam, 271 May 2015

Supervisory Board

R VC Schellens {chairman)
JR Dijst

FM R van der Horst
AJBM Pesk

A Rahusen
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Corporate structure

AACR 1s a public company wath imited hability incorporated
on 25 November 1982 under Dutch Law and 1s a fully
owned subsichary of ABN AMRO, which is in turn fully owned
by AAG The financial statements of AACB are incorporated
in the consolidated financal statements of AAG

AAG had 1ssued a 403 Statement regarding AACB A 403
Statement I1s a statement of a parent company in which it
assumes joint and several habihty for all habiities anising
from legal acts of its subsichianies A 403 Declaration refers
to section 2 403 of the Dutch Civil Code and must be filed
with the Trade Register of the Chamber of Commerce

AACSE has a two tier board structure, consisting of a
Managing Board and a Supervisory Board

The responsibilities and activities of the Managing Board and
the Supervisary Board are governed by Dutch company law
and AACB's Articles of Association Furthermore, AACB has
established rules for the Managing Board and Superwisory
Board regarding their activities and responsibibties

Managing Board

Responsibilities of the Managing Board

The members of the Managing Board collectively manage
AACB and are responsible for its strategy, structure and
performance, including the assessment and management
of the nsks related to AACB's activities In carrying out
therr duties, the members of the Managing Board are
guided by the interests and continuity of AACB and its
affiliated enuties taking into consideration the interests
of all of AACB's stakeholders and of society at large

The Managing Board is accountable for the performance
of its duties to the Supervisory Board and the General

Meeting of Shareholders

The Managing Board must share with the Supervisory

Board, AACB's operational and financial objectives, annual
accounts, strategy and the parameters applied in relation
to the strategy

Appointment, suspension and dismissal

The members of the Managing Board are appointed by
the General Meeting of Shareholders {being ABN AMRO)
The Supervisory Board and the General Meeting of
Shareholders may at any time suspend a member of the
Managing Board

Members of the Managing Board ¢an only be dismissed
by the General Meeting of Shareholders

An overview of the current composition of the Managing
Board 1s provided in the Managing Board Report

Remuneration

AACB's Managing Board members are subject to

ABN AMRQ’s remuneration policy This policy has been
approved by the shareholder(s} of ABN AMRO and
governs principles and policies for Management Group
members and identified staff

ABN AMRAO strives to position the level of total direct
compensation for Management Group members just
below market median levels With effect from 2014, the
vanable compensation for Management Group members
in the Netherlands was capped at 20% of base salary in
anticipation of the new Dutch bonus cap included in the
Act on Remuneration Policies of Financial Undertakings
{Wet beloningsbeleid finaniele ondernemingen, or Whfo
by its Dutch acronym)

The remuneration packages for identified staff have been
structured in accordance with the regulations for the
financial sector and consist of the following components
» Annual base salary

» Annual vanable remuneration {with deferred pay-out}
» Benefits and other entittements

@
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Supervisory Board

Responsibilities of the Supervisory Board

The supervisory Board supervises the Managing Board
as well as the general course of affars of AACB and of
its affilated entities In addition, the Supervisory Board
assists the Managing Board by rendering advice

In carrying out therr duties, the members of the Supervisory

Board are guided by the interests and continuity of AACB and
its affillated entities, taking into consideraton the interests of
all of AACB's stakeholders and socrety at farge Certain powers
are vested with the Supervisory Board, including the approval

of certam resolutions proposed by the Managing Board

The Supervisory Board must meet at least four times each
year and on 5o many further occasions as any of the members
of the Superwisory Board may deem It necessary

Appointment, suspension and dismissal
An averview of the current composition of the Supervisory
Board 1s provided in the Supervisory Board Report

All members of the Supervisory Board are employed by
ABN AMRO and do not receive separate compensation for
being member of AACB's Supervisory Board Members

of the Supervisory Board are formally appointed and may
be suspended or dismissed by the General Meeting of
Shareholders

Diversity

The Managing Board and the Supervisory Board consists
of individuals only According to the Act on Management
and Supervion (Wet Bestuur en Toezicht} members of
each Board must be at least 30% male or female

At the end of 2014 the Managing Board of AACB consisted
of 20% female members and the Supervisory Board of
100% male members The composition of the Supervisory
Board changed in 2014, as two members stepped down
and were replaced by two new members When replacing
members of or expanding the Managing Board or Supervisory
Board, female candidates will be preferred

Dutch Banking Code

The Dutch Banking Code came inte effect on 1 January
2010 The Code sets out principles that banks should adhere
to in terms of corporate governance, risk management,

audrt and remuneration The Banking code applies to
AACB as a licensed bank under the Act on Financial
Supervision (At} AACB 1s part of the ABN AMRO group of
companies The principles of the Banking Code are applied
by ABN AMRO in full to all relevant entiies withun 1ts group
of companies on a consclidated basis In accordance with
ABN AMRO’s management framework, all members of the
group are an integral part of the ABN AMRO organisation
The management framework entalls that the bank’s policies
and standards related to compliance with internal and
external regulations and best practises are applicable

to the full group and consequently are defined at group
level for mplementation within the different parts of the
organisation

AACB implemented the relevant parts of the Dutch Banking
Code A principle-by-principle overview of the manner in
which ABN AMRQ and its subsidianes comply with the
Dutch Banking Code 2010 1s published on abnamro com

The updated Dutch Banking Code came Into effect

on 1 January 2015, along with the Social Charter
{Maatschappeljk Statuut) that 1s complementary 1o the
Dutch Banking Code The updated Dutch Banking Code
takes into acceunt the recommendations of the Banking
Code Monitonng Commussion, the report of the Commuittee
on the Structure of Banks, the government’s views on the
Dutch banking industry and the vision of the Dutch Banking
Association The new Dutch Banking Code, along with the
introduction of the Social Charter and implementation of
the Banker's Qath (together with the associated rules of
conduct and disciplinary rules) applicable to all employees
of financial institutions in the Netherlands, emphasise the
social role of banks and their comrmitment to meeting the
expectations of society at large

Shareholders

General Meetings of Shareholders

At least one General Meeting of Shareholders 1s generally
heald each year withun six rnonths of the end of the financial
year The General Meeting of Shareholders 1s entitled to
adopt the annual accounts and important decisions regarding
the identity or the character of AACB The agenda must
include at least the following matters the annuat report,
the adoption of the annual accounts and the granting of
discharge tc the members of the Managing Board and
the Supervisory Board The annual General Meeting of

@




Shareholders of AACB was held on 22 July 2014 The
general Meeting of Shareholders adopted the Annual
Accounts 2013 and granted discharge to the members
of the Managing Board and the Supervisory Board

Legal structure
AACB 15 100% owned by ABN AMRO, a company
incorporated in the Netherlands

AAG owns all shares (100%)} in ABN AMRO On
29 September 2011 the Dutch State transferred its
shares in AAG to 'Stichting administratiekantoor
beheer financiele instelingen’('NLFI’)

This Governmental body, with an independent Board, has
been set up to manage the financial interests held by the
Dutch State in Dutch financial insttutions NLFI issued
exchangeable depositary recerpts in return for acquiring
the shares held by the Dutch State in ABN AMRO NLFI
1s responsible for managing these shares and exercising
all nghts associated with these shares under Dutch law,
incluchng voting nghts Material decisions require the
prior approval of the Mimister of Finance NLFI holds all
ordinary shares in AAG, representing 100% of the voting
nghts {2013 100%)

ABN AMRO Clearing provides its cleanng and related
services in Europe through AACB Amsterdam and through

Legal structure

ABN AMRO
Group N.V.

Executive board AACB N V
> Marcal Jongmans

3 Jan Bart de Boer

2 Lave Vanbockrick ARN AMRD
3 Andre) Bolkovic 403 declaration Bank NV,
>> Boudewnn Dumstra

Supervisory Board AACB N ¥
» Rutger Schellens

» Jeroen Dyst

> Toon Paek

> Alexgnder Rahusen

2 Frans van der Horst

ARN AMRO

Clearing Bank N.¥

AACB's branches in Frankfurt and London AACB has been
a fully licensed bank since 30 September 2003 Under
the Single Supervisory Mechansm (SSM) implemented

in November 2014, prudential supervision over AACB 1s
transferred from the Dutch Central Bank {DNB) to the
European Central Bank {ECB)

AACB provides its services outside Europe through

its 100% subsidiarnies ABN AMRO Clearing Chicago,
ABN AMRO Clearing Sydney, ABN AMRO Clearing
Tokyo, ABN AMRO Clearing Hong Kong, and ABN AMRO
Cleaning Singapore and through AACB Singapore Branch On
28 February, 2011 AACB created Holland Cleanng House N V
(HCH) HCH 15 a pubhc irmited company incorporated under
the laws of the Netherlands HCH delvers dernivatives
CCP services to the multilaterai trading faciity TOM MTF
In the Netherlands

At yearend 2013, AACB owned 100% of the shares

in HCH On 3 December 2014, AACB sold 75% of

1ts shares to Intercontinental Exchange (ICE} AACB
retained the remaining 25% of shares in HCH See also
Note 18 to the Financial Statements

ABN AMRO Global Custody Services N V {(AAGCS) 1s
the safekeeping company of AACB and 1s charged with
mamntaining AACB clients securities (with the exception
of derivatives) AAGCS 1s structured as a bankruptey
remote vehicle

Stichting ABN AMRO
Global Custosy

ABN AMRO Clearing Bank NV
Franitur kranch

ABN AMRO Ctaaring Bank N.V.
Lordan dranch

ABN AMRO Clearing Bank N.V.
Singapore aranch

ARN AMRD AEN AMRO ABN AMRO

Cleari kaisha/
Clearing Clearing s earing
Sydna ted Hong Kong Lid ingapare
ydnay Pry g Kong Pre Ud

ASN AMBO
Clearing Tokyo
Co. Lttt

100%

ARN AMRD
Sydney

Nominees
Py Lnd

Shaken kabushiki

25% 100%

ABN AMRO Haslland

Clraring Clvaring Hause
Chicago LLC BV

LLLEL LY ABN AMRO
Glokal Cuslady EHactenbewaar-
Services N.V. Bedrijt NV
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Regulatory developments

New regulatory proposals are constantly being introduced
at global, European and national level AACB contnuousty
monitors developments and prepare for upcoming
regulatory changes Implementing measures to address
new laws and regulations is costly and impacts AACB's
business Given the quantity of new laws and regulations
that are relevant to us, we focus here on the main
regulatory changes that are expected to impact AACB
More information can be found under the heading
Regulatory environment

Risk management

In 1its daily operational activities AACB s confronted with
various nsks such as market, credit, iquidity, operational,
and reputational nsks Credit nsk and market nsk are most
important for AACB given the nature of its business
Accurate identification and contral of these nsks constitutes
an important part of AACB day-to-day operations

The nsk appetite of AACB Is aligned with ABN AMROQO's
corporate strategy and thus set with a view to creating a
moderate nisk profile It 1s monitored on a monthly basis
by benchmarking actual and expected nsk profiles

In 2014 AACB had two defaults and a default rate of
0,27 bps {2013 0,00 bps) on the overall outstanding
credit lines of EUR 271 billion (2013 EUR 25,1 bilhon)

Moere information on AACB's risk management, rnisk
framework and the main risks 1t faces can be found In
the nsk management section on page 16

Financial review 2014
The year 2014 proved to be successful with a net profit
of EUR 74 mithion and a return on assets of 28 bps

Initially, a persistent downtrend in traded volumes was
seen on most exchanges as volatlity reached levels
equalling the bottoms in AACB’s 24 year history

In particular the Eurozone economy continued to face high
unemployment rates, low levels business activity and weak
consumer confidence However, In the second half market
activity picked up due to the pro-democracy demonstrations
in Hong Kong and the Ukraine conflict which lead to
economic sanctions on Russia and consequently the
rouble cnsis Other factors that weighed in were the
continuing unstable situation in the Middle East Together,
these resulted in a peak iIn commussion income In the
last quarter of the year Compared to 2013, fee iIncome
increased by EUR 2 million This represents approximately
1% and 1s largely in ine with the developments seen

in the number of traded derwvatives on the exchanges
worldwide

Cue to the fragile econamic environment interest rates
consistently trended down leading to tightening of
spreads Nevertheless, AACB managed to report the
strongest interest result in 1ts history thanks to high
chent financing needs, growth in Securties Borrowing &
Lending and favourable netting opportunities

Finally, the key driver in AACB’s strong results was the

strategic sale of its majonity interest in Holland Clearning
House to Intercontinental Exchange in December 2014
Without this resuit the total profit of AACB would have

been EUR 39 million

Improving AACB's effictency was one of the main
focuses 1n 2014 This was reflected partly in the further
optmisation If our global IT infrastructure through the launch
of inmiatives to iImplement the same clearing system in
the Chicago subsidiary as 1s used by ali the other AACB
offices We are pleased to report that the activities
relating to the offshoring to India are in their final stages
and expected to be finished within the second quarter of
2015 These strategtc projects took a sigrificant amount
of investment and called for a high level of external
hiring to ensure successful integration and continuity of
the day-to-day business

@




Additionally, the decision was taken 1o close AACB's
offrce in Belgium and to reduce the operations team in
the UK Both these measures resulted in restructuring
costs

Despite the strong cost focus, AACB expernenced a rise
In regulatory expenses regarding the Dutch Banking Tax
of aimost EUR 1 million, which is fully correlated with the
growth in AACB's balance sheet In the coming years
further increases in regulatory expenses are expected as
a result of the introduction of the European Resolution
Fund for which contribution will be mandatory from 2015
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In 2014, a myriad of new regulatory initiatives were
introduced at national, European, and global level
The majority of these regulations have an impact on
AACB’s products & services, as well as its business-
and operating model

At the same time, despite their mandatory character,
some regulations may also offer commaercial and
strategic opportunities AACB 1s committed to meeting
all its reguiatory obligations while seeking to mimimise
the impact on its clients, products and services We
are therefore proactively monitoring and anticipating
new developments, while remaining well-prepared for
upcoming regulatory changes AACB is closely aligned
with, local, European and global, regulators on new

Regulatory Environment Europe

regulatory developments In addition, we are tn constant
dialogue with and actively involved in the proceedings

of a number of market and industry groups at the local,
European and global levels

During 2014 AACB remained focused on the ongoing
implementation of legislation introduced 1n the wake

of the G20 comrmitments following the financial crisis,
most notably on denwvative market transparency and the
reduction of systemic rnisk

Given the quantity of new laws and regulations, this
sectron provides an overview of key regulatory initiatives,
regulatory developments and supervisory focuses
affecting AACB globally

Systemic Risk

& Behaviour

CRD IV /CRR
(Basel i)

Securities

Financing
Transparency

Market Abuse
Regulation

Market Infrastructure

Market Transparency

Supervision & |
Resolution

Single Supervisory
Mechanism

MiFID ii / MiFIR

Single Resolution
Mechanism

CCP Recovery &
Resolution
(Expected)




CRDIV and the reduction of systemic risk

One of the most significant ongoing iImplementations
aimed at reducing systemic nisk is the Et-wide
implementation of Basel |11, collectively known as the
Capital Requirements Directive [V {CRD V) and the Capital
Requirements Regulation (CRR) CRDIV and CRR lay
down new capital, leverage and liquidity standards

to strengthen the regulation, supervision and risk
management of the banking industry

EMIR - Derivative market transparency &
mandatory clearing

The European Markets Infrastructure Regulation (EMIR)
requirements on denvative market transparency entered
into force in February 2014 as the centrepiece of the
European market transparency initiatives The rules
mandate the reporting of OTC and exchange traded
derivatives to an authorised trade repository The reporting
cbligation 1s currently largely implemented across the
market, resulting in the majornity of market participants
facing operational, logistical and adminustrative challenges

In November 2014, the European Securities and Markets
Autherity (ESMA) published proposals to resolve certain
i1ssues related to reporting with a review of the entre EMIR
framework being scheduled for the second half of 2015

The clearing cbhgation for certain OTC derivative products
1s expected to commence n 2015 for interest rate swaps
(IRS)

Stgnificant progress on EMIR has been made with the
drafting of the provisions for the central cleanng of a
range of OTC dervatives In 2014 the European Securities
Markets Authority {ESMA) published a number of draft
secondary legislation documents setting out the initial
classes of derivatives it proposes to make subject to
mandatory ¢learing, including interest rate derivatives
and credit denvatives ESMA has halted the legislative
process for FX forwards

MiFID Il Market infrastructure reform

The main reform affecting market infrastructure remains
the revised Markets in Financial Instruments Directive /
Regulation (MIFID 1) and MiFIR} The MIFID |l and MIFIR
framework will entall a complete overhaul of the market
infrastructure and existing trading practices aimed at
increasing investor protection, mandatory on-exchange

trading of certain OTC denvatives, and a range of new
transparency requirements The pnmary legislation
was published in April 2014, with draft proposals for
secondary legisiation proposals being opened for
consultation in July and December

SSM / SRM - Single Supervisory & Resolution
Mechanism

2014 saw some significant changes in the supervisory
framework with the formation of the European Banking
Union In November 2014, banking superwvision for

the most significant banks in the eurgzone including
ABN AMRO and AACB) was transferred to the Single
Supervisory Mecharsm (SSM) governed by the European
Central Bank in Frankfurt The SSM is one of the two
pillars of the European Banking Unian, along with the
Single Resolution Mechanism {(SRM) The latter ams

to ensure an orderly resolution of failing banks with
mintmal costs for taxpayers and the real economy

Both the United States and the European Union have
indicated that they aim to introduce similar recovery and
resolution frameworks for central counterparties in 2015
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Risk Appetite

A bank’s nsk appetite determines the level and nature
of nisk that 1t 1s willing to take in order to pursue its
strategy, taking all stakeholders into consideration The
risk appetite clarifies the use of nisk capacity across the
different risk types, businesses and operating entities,
In this way optimising rnisk and return AACB's nsk appetite
15 aligned with ABN AMRO'’s corporate strategy and
thus set with a view to create a moderate rnisk profile

It takes into account all nisk types of the nisk taxonomy
relevant for AACB, moare particularly the main risk types
- credit, market, operational, iquidity and business nsk —
and sets imits on AACB’s overall nisk-taking capacity

It 1s monitored menthly by benchmarking actual and
expected risk profiles so that corrective actions can be
defined This risk appetite 1s reviewed annually and
approved by all relevant committees within the bank

Risk governance

As a 100% subsidiary of ABN AMRQ, AACB 1s part

of ABN AMRO's governance, 1 @ its Three Lines of

Defence model, its nsk decision framewaork, and its
product approval process

The First Line of Defence - risk ownership — resides

in each busmness (e g AACB), whereby management
in each business (e g AACB management} i1s prnimarily
responsible for the nisks they take, the results, execution,
cempliance and the effectiveness of nisk control

The Second Line of Defence — rnisk control - s formed
by the risk control functions that are responsible for
setting frameworks, rules and advice, and monitoring
and reporting on execution, management, and nsk controf
The second line ensures that the first line takes nsk
ownership and has approval authonty on credit proposals
above a certam threshold Vartous departments of

ABN AMRO such as Complance, Sustainability, Legal,
Tax and Finance {including ALM) service AACB In exerting
the required nsk control

s
management

The Third Line of Defence - nsk assurance — 1s the
internal audit function ABN AMRO's Group Audit
department evaluates the effectiveness of the governance,
nisk management and control processes and recommends
solutions to optimise the Group Audit coordinates matters
with the externa! auditor, the Dutch Central Bank and
the European Central Bank

The nsk decision framework of AACB 1s integrated in
that of ABN AMRO For example, AACB credit proposals
need approval by the Central Credit Committee of

ABN AMRO, or a subsidiary committee / following the
credit delegation framework of ABN AMRO and advised
by second line credit sk functions

Moreover AACB does not engage in any proprietary
trading as this is not part of its mandate It operates at
arrn's length from ABN AMRO and provides a cleanng
service as an independent market participant with a
focus on third parties

The nsk models used by AACB require formal approval
by a subsidiary committee of the ABN AMRQ Group
Risk Committee {GRC) and are reviewed and validated
at least annually

Management of risks

Sound nisk management Is a cornerstone of AACB's
business model Risk centres are operated in every
time zene, and these local nisk centres are supported
and governed by various risk functions at headquarters
in Amsterdam The local risk management staff monitors
client activity on a daily and intraday basis to ensure
that all clients stay within the agreed market and credit
risk parameters

Although AACB does not run market risk on its own,

it will encounter market nisk as a result of its credit
activities () AACB explicitly guarantees, as a third party
clearing member, the fulfilment of obligations towards

@




clearing houses and other third parties ansing from
customers’ transactions In the event of a client defaulting,
AACB has the legal obligation to settle all the client’s
postions with the relevant clearing houses, possibly at a
loss Additionally, {n) AACB provides credit lines to clients
to leverage business opportunities

To manage the above, all chent exposures are fully
collateralised For the potential exposures that result
from chent portfolios, clients need to deposit collateral
with AACB which 15 assessed on a daily basis These so
called margin requirements are based both on realised
changes In the value of the chent portfolios and on
potential changes based on very conservative scenario
analyses and stress tests that are conducted on a dally
and ntraday basis

From a legal perspective both in the case of cleanng
and financing and of securities borrowing and lending
services, all portfolios are fully pledged to AACB with

the margin requirements that apply, and these exposures
and portfolios are over-collateralised at all times In
addition, ABN AMRO Cleanng has the contractual ability
to immediately seize and hquidate the client’s portfolio
should the client fail to meet the collateral requirements
Hence, in the event of a violation, a chent s requested
to deposit additional collateral and / or reduce the risk
in the portfohe In case of default, the portfolio of the
client can be taken over by AACB and be liquidated

In addition to managing market and thus credit nsk,

the AACB nisk departments conduct market surveillance
activities on clients for which AACB acts as the executing
broker that brings therr orders to the exchanges Also,
they ensure that the exposures towards brokers, cleanng
houses, financial institutions and other counterparties
that AACB faces in its capacity of General Clearing
Member, stay within the imits that are approved within
ABN AMRQ's risk commitiees

Due 1o the nature of AACB's activities, its financial assets
and hiabilities are generally of a short term nature
Primanly non-committed credit facilties with short tenors
are provided to clients One overall global hquidity
funding Iine 1s obtained from ABN AMRO Internally the
iquidity 1s managed around the clock by three dedicated
Treasury centres, one in each time zone

Virtually ail client inventories consist of iquid exchange
traded secunties and dernivatives Consequently the book
values do not differ materially from the market values and
everything is very transparent when it comes to valuation
of portfolios

Next to the intense focus on the market and credit nisks on
both clent and street side, AACB pays specific attention
to the operational nsk component of 1ts busmess model
Dedicated operational nsk staff constantly monitor the
operational nisk profile of the global firm by keeping track
of up-to-date operating procedures, potential operational
losses, proper foliow up of audit ponts, secunty management,
business continuity testing and many other aspects that
contribute to a safe working environment and optimal
protection of clients’ assets

Finally ABN AMRO Clearing s alsc exposed to regulatory
nsk as 1t 1s operating in a highly regulated environment
Home regulators are ECB, DNB and AFM while the other
locations around the world AACB also interact with local
regulators such as the Bundesanstait fur Finanzdienst-
leistungsaufsicht ( BaFin, Germany), the Financial Conduct
Authenty {FCA, United Kingdom), the Secunties and
Exchange Commussion {SEC, United States), the Monetary
Authority of Singapore {(MAS) and several others In addition
AACB deals with many different exchanges and central
cleaning houses that mandate ther own rules and regula-
tions New regulations such Dodd-Frank, EMIR, MIFID |I
and Base! l!l also have a profound impact on AACB and its
clent base Local Compliance departments in every country
ensure constant comphance with all these regulations and
maintain communications with the varous regulators to
protect the firm from reguiatory risk

Audited | Tollustrate the amount of inventary financing that

1s provided out of AACB and the total outstanding client credit
faciliies (excluding ABN AMRO Group compamies), the figures
neluding utiisation are as follows

EUR illion 2n4 2013
" Total outstanding chent credit faciliies 27112 2513
Total utihisaton 1,17 10,46
f intal debit cash utihsation 5,88 6,74
Total short stock utilisgtion 5,29 372

In 2014 AACB had two defaults and a default rate of 0,27
bps (2013 0,00 bps) on overall outstanding credit lines of
EUR 271 bithon (2013 25,1 bilhon)

@
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Credit risk mitigation

Credit nsk mitigation considers techriques that reduce
credit risk associated with a credit facility or exposure,
Credit nsk mitigation mainly relates 1o collateral
management and guarantees, offsetting financial assets
and liabilities and enforcing master netting agreements
or similar instruments

Collateral management and guarantees

The clients of AACB deposit funds and liquid marketable
securnties with AACB These assets serve as collateral
for credit facilities or market nsk of these chents In

the event of default and subsequent iquidation AACB
has priority nights on the proceeds of the clients asset
because the collateral s pledged to AACB or we have

a lren or other type of security nght Collateral 1s a way
to mitigate or reduce credit nsk associated with a credit
facility or exposure In addition, under certain predefined
conditions, collateral can also result in a reduction in
both reguiatory capital and economic capital All types
of collateral should comply with pre-defined eligibility
criteria Collateral 's monitored regularly to ensure eligibiity
and sufficient value

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and labiliies are offset and the net amount
Is reported on the balance sheet If there 15 a legally
enforceable nght to set off the recogrised amounts and
there I1s erther an intention to settle on a net basis or

an intention to reahse the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously The credit nsk exposure 1s largely mitigated
by receiving collateral from clients

Enforceable master netting agreements or similar
istruments

In addition to the above, enforceable master netting
agreements taking into account provisions that make
netting and offsetting exercisable in the event of default
of the clignt are entered into Furthermore, AACB
may upen request of clients enter into master netting
arrangements, such as derivative cleanng agreements,
global master repurchase agreements and global master
securities lending agreements, which also take into
account provisions that make netung and offsetting
exercisable in the event of default




Offsetting, netting and collateral & guarantees

{x EUR 1 000) 31 December 2014
Assets Carrying Balance Carrying Master Collateral Total Surplus Net
amount sheet amount Netting Risk Collateral axposure
hafore netting agraement mittgation

balance with

sheat gross

netting habifities
" Cash and balances at central banks 21 166 21166 . 21166
Financial assets held for trading 26 017 504 101 504 - 101504
» Financial investments 47457 47457 - 47457
Secunties financing 9604 377 9604377 47 858 9392 145 10040 003 9711 535 475

. Loans and receivables - banks 5.716 483 5716 483 4195280 330030 4525 310 1191173"
Loans and recelvables — customers 11 045959 25916 000 11045959 2152633 14129230 16 281 863 8312780 3076876"
: Equity accounted investments 21280 21280 - 21280
Cther 62 067 62 067 - 62 067
Total assets 620293 . BSTTI 4451405 30847176 9283831 50599
Liabilities Carrying Balaace Carrying Master Net
ameunt shoot amount Netting amount
before netting agreement

balance with

shest gross

netting assots
; F;llénmﬂ liabilitigs held for trading 160.365 100.365 100 365
Secunities financing 1135840 1135840 47858 1087 982
Dus to banks 43 355 055 25916000%" 17 439055 4155280 132437175
Due to customers 692313 69233 2162633 4771080
' tssued debt 325 325 325
Other 130 169 190 169 150 169
Total liabilities : 12.3%3.69%

* In AACB s business model gach client exposure 1s covered by collateral The remaimng amounts (h the net exposure column mainly consist of margin and default

funds placed at CCP s and cash at own bank accounts
** This amount reflact the Interest Rate Swap position of ABN AMRO Sales and Trading
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{x EUR 1 000) 31 December 2013
Assets Carrying Balance Carrying Master  Collateral Total Surplus Net
amount sheet amount Netting Risk Collateral axposura
befora netting agreemant mitigation
balanca with
shoet qgross
netting liabilities
JEE—
LCfs_h a_nd balances at central banks 124 608 124 508 - 124 608
Financial assets held for trading 51738 51738 - 51738
Lﬁnanclal investments 46 233 46 233 - 46233
Securities financing 6981 947 6981947 52 5981 835 5981 947 -
LLgans and recevablas — banks 4980 240 4980 240 34263712 1 663 328 5089 700 3536369 3426909"
Loans and recevables — customers 10 545 620 10945 620 1323289 14 742.443 161065 732 7064 513 1944 40 °
{_équnv accounted investments 7503 7503 - 7503
Other 64 044 64 044 - 64044
Total assets i 474913 13387 666 28.132.379 10 600.882 5.665 436
Liabilities Carrying Balance Carrying Master Net
amount sheet amount Netting amount
before netting agreement
balance with
sheet gross
natting assots
" Financial kabilties held for trading 53207 53207 52 53 155
Secunhes financing 1024 497 1024 497 § 024 497
Iluaju banks 15997 422 15997 422 3194372 12803050
Due to customers 5275333 5275333 1521289 3754044
| Other 156 470 156 470 156 470
Totad liabilities 47115.N3 1191216

* In AACB s business model each client exposure 15 covered by collateral Tha remaining amounts in the net exposure calumn mainly consist of margin and default

funds placed at CCP s and cash at own bank accounts

Stress Testing

Being part of ABN AMRO, AACB takes partin the

ABN AMRO-wide stress testing programme which
applies stress testing on a regular basis to assess the
effect of stress events on the bank These include
sensitivity analysis with respect to specific risk drivers,
scenario analysis regarding potential relevant scenanos,
and reverse stress testing The main objectives of stress
testing are to ensure that AACB keeps operating within
its moderate nisk appetite, to increase risk awareness
throughout AACB, and to safeguard busmess continuity
It is worth noting that also the monitoring of the client
portfolios under extreme market scenanos and the
stress parameters In AACB's risk management framework
also contribute towards meeting these objectives

Liquidity Risk

Ligquidity nsk is the nsk that a financial institution

will be unable to meet its financial obligations on time
Ligudity nsk managernent seeks to ensure that a financial
institution 1s able to continue Its business activities
under normal and adverse {market) circumstances This
includes meeting uncertain cash flow obligations that
depend on external events and on the behaviour of
other parties

Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity nisk management is integrated in AACB's
business activities AACB’s Treasury department
monitors its actual and expected cash movements on
an intraday basis




In 2014 AACB set up a hquidity nsk control framework
n order to update and improve its iquidity management
framework The control framework sets the principles for
prudent iquidity nsk management and describes
lquidity nisk appetite,

hquidity risk governance,

day-to-day iguidity management (procedures),
hguidity stress testing scenarios and cutcomes, the
contingency funding plan,

hquidity monitaring and reporting framework,

AACB's liquidity buffer requirement

vy vy

v

In accordance with (ts role as a general clearing member,
AACB provides collateralised financing to its clients
Short term funding is provided to finance clents’ positions
and meet payment obligations {e g margin calls from
central counterparties and settlements} in principle the
short-term funding 1s uncommitted {overnight and legally
documented) and coliateralised Exceptions have 1o

be agreed upon as matched (term) funding has to be
arranged in order to be in ine with AACB's iguidity

nsk appetite For its own funding requirements AACB
predominantly relies on funding from ABN AMRO

Menitoring hgquidity risk

AACB's Treasury department monitors actual and expected
cash movements on an intraday basis The operating
systems notify AACB's Treasury department on a daily
basis concerning flow of funds

Using this information, AACB's Treasury department keeps
an intraday surveillance on the bank's hquidity position
and ensures that sufficient collateral 1s on deposit

The hquidity position of AACB 1s communicated to
ABN AMRO several times a day

Liquidity stress tests are regularly performed in order to
ensure the effectiveness of the liquidity management
framework and the day-to-day hguidity management
procedures AACB analyses the impact that different
scenanos may have on the bank and the environment

in which 1t operates

Scenano analysis 1s seen as an adequate 100l as it
enables AACB to assess Its resistance to stressed
environments or scenaros to be tested, as well as
providing insight into measures that could reduce

the overall nsk profile Thanks to this tight control,
exposure to hquidity nsk 1s low

The {monthly) frequency with which AACB's Management
Board meets ensures focused participation by senor
management In the daily management of hquidity nsks,
as well as agihity in identifying potential Issues, and
taking decisions

Liguidity sensitivity gaps

The following table provides a maturity analysis of the
earliest contractual undiscounted cash flows for assets
and habilities It represents the short-term nature and
cash flows of AACB's activities Financial assets and
habilties are stated at farr value and non-financial assets
and habtlities are stated at book value The amounts
include the accrued interest as stated in the balance
sheet

Operationally AACB has sufficient access to iguidity to
cover normal course of business
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Liquidity sensitivity gap statement (x EUR 1 000)

At 31 December 2014 0-1 months 1-3months  3-12 months 1-5 years Total
rleed rate financial instruments 672.761 2854 996 - - 3527 7517
Vanable rate financial instruments 20688 231 782 861 - - 214192
[Nun-lnterest heanng financial instruments 1496 838 34497 18 330 8§1Nn3 1558 378

Non-financial assets 62.957 - - - 62957

Total Assets e . 2672454 18330 8713 26.620 284
'Lleed rate financial instruments 19454 829 2992.88% - - 22.447 118
Varizble rate financial instruments 2098 641 61625 - - 2160 266
. Non-interest beanng financial mstruments 941 833 22053 18330 873 990 989
Non-financial hallives 190 158 " - 325 190 494
Total Liabilities 2685621 3076 578 18330 9038 25789 467
| Net hquidity surplus/gap 235 266 595 876 - 325" 830 817

* This item concerns a private placement from AACB with a metunty of three years

Liquidity sensitivity gap statement (x EUR 1 000)

At 31 December 2013 0-1months  1-3months  3-12months 1-5years Total
f Fixed rate financial instruments 1450758 1945724 34 000 - 3430482
Vartable rate financial instruments 17 387 859 493330 - - 17 881 189
}\Eon—mterest bearing financial tnstruments 1784 593 26877 23914 - 1835384

Non-financial assets 54 878 - - - 54 878

Tatal Assets 2.465.931 57914 - 23201 933
E@a‘lte flnil[lc_lal Instruments 16326 825 1874884 17 000 - 18218 709
Vanatle rate financial instruments 3328 248 - 17.000 - 3345248
iﬂé\;n:efﬁ l}ea;mg" financial nstruments 20583 8710 73914 . 53207
Non-financral habilites 889 765 - - - 889 765
Total Liabilities 0 s 1883594 57914 - 22,506 929

Net hquidity surplus/gap 112 667 582 337 - - 695 004




Operational risk

AACB 15 exposed to operational nsk ansing from the
uncertainty inherent to iIts business undertakings and
decisions Qperational risk 1s the nsk of loss resulting
from inadequate or {ailed internal processes, systems,
human error or external events Some examples of
operational nisk are wrongful execution of an order,
fraud, htigation for non-comphiance with law, natural
disasters and terronsm

Operaticnal risk within AACB 1s monitored and controlled
by three complementary departments, in line with

ABN AMRQO's Three lines of defence model of as
described earlier under Risk governance

in November 2014, AACB stated in its management self-
assessment (MSA) that it complies with the advanced
measurement approach (AMA) regarding implementation
and embedment critena for operational risk management
as defined on ABN AMRO level This compliance statement
was based on a thorough substantiation of the level

of implementation and embedment regarding all the
aperaticnal risk instrurnents that form part of the AMA
framewaork and reflects the level of operational rsk
control within the firm The statement has been validated
by both the Second Line of Defence as well as the Third
Line of Defence The new AMA framewaork has been
implemented within AACB, with the Dutch Central Bank
expected to approve the ABN AMRO framework in the
course of 2015

Internal control

Operationa! risk management 1s promoted through the
AACB internal control framework Procedures and
work Instructions are In place to safeguard a controlled
operational environment The organisational structure
of AACB ensures separation of duties and clearly
defines decision-making powers and the alfocation of
responsibiities, including powers of representation

Business continuity management

Business continuity management {(BCM) provides a
framework tc respond to all possible ¢rises endangerning
the continuity of business activities BCM s embedded
throughout AACB and AACB complies with ABN AMRO
BCM policies and procedures

Avallability of business processes I1s a key aspect for the
internal and external operations of ¢leaning activities

Business continuity plans (BCPs) are in place for each
individual AACB site and aim to imut the impact of
unexpected events on the continuity of services Each
BCP describes the procedures to be followed in order
to maintain critical activities of the bank in the case of
an emergency leading to the loss of one of the cntical
products/services or systems

Training is provided on a continuous basis to Business
Cnisis Team members Staff members are obliged to
participate 1n BCP awareness sessions and receive BCP
up-dates and e-learning sessions

BCM AACB reports quarterly to ABN AMRO Second line
of defence on the status of their framework

Information risk management

The clearing business is a knowledge and information
intense enterpnse and ensunng confidentiality, integrity
and availability of information being crucial to protect the
business In order to effectively manage the threats and
nsks, an information nsk management framework has been
implemented for all AACB locations The effectiveness

of this plan 1s reported quarterly to the risk committees
within AACB and ABN AMRO

Second Line of Defence functions validate the adequacy
of ewidencing of required controls by IT and Information
Security functions

Where necessary, improvements are wdentified and
addressed in action plans 1o increase the level of
monitorng over implemented controls

lnformation Technology risk

AACB’s secunty metrnics are based on a global information
security framework AACB has incorporated these
controls to guarantee the accuracy and completeness

of data processing They are based on market standards
{e g Control Objectives for Information and Related
Technology) and regulatory frameworks All projects and
magor changes are assessed via a nsk change assessment
(RCA) with cybersecunity being an integral part of the
overall secunty framework

In order to mit business risks related to the use of
informatien technology (IT) to a mimimum, several
internal control measures have been implemented,
such as deploying a Business Support department as

®
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the intermediary between AACB's users and its [T
development and business development functions
User access reviews take place on a regular basis

Moreover, AACB's IT systems and networks are
continuously monitored to assure availability,
confidentiality and integrity This 1s done for indmduat
systems for AACB's critical business chains There 1s
stnict control and separation of the IT environments used
for developing, testing and production Every year, AACB
performs disaster recovery tests in every region for all
the core systems to assure adequate functicrung and
identify aspects for further improvements

Systemuc risk

Participants m the financial infrastructure are systemically
relevant, as a faiture of one component will ssmultaneously
affect a large number of players in the market Systemic
problems can anse f the functions of an affected
component are not transferred to another party in a
tmely manner The abihty to transfer functions of an
affected component depends on the size of the activities
and on the specific market charactenstics including
local law and legislation and participants’ contingency
arrangements As a clearing member, AACB I1s part of

the financial infrastructure which interconnects various
market participants

The finangial infrastructure 1s regulated and ntensively
supervised by regulatory authorities The market
infrastructure includes CCPs whose role 1t is to mifigate
counterparty sk Clearing members are required to pay
izl margins up front to cover potential future exposure
that the CCP runs on the positions of its clearing
members In addition to the paid upfront margin, CCPs
also require clearing members to contribute into default
funds (also known as guarantee funds) In the event of a
default of a clearing member with losses greater than the
imtizl margin and default contnbution of the defaulting
clearing mernber, the default contrnibutions of other
clearing members will be used to cover the losses f
these are depleted, there 1s a mandatory re-financing call
to each of the remaining clearing members up to its prnor
default fund contribution, or alternatively the clearing
member can hand in its membership To a large extent,
CCP clearing ensures that monetary losses as a result of
a default of a clearning member are covered

Foreign exchange risk

AACB's actvities in London, Singapore, Japan, Hong Kong,
Sydney and Chicage mean that foreign exchange risk 1s
borne on the net working capital of the London Branch and
the equity positions of the Singapore, Japan, Hong Kong,
Sydney and Chicago subsidiaries Entering into foreign
currency transactions with related parttes financially
mitigates this foreign exchange nisk for AACB

ABN AMRO 1s committed to providing immediate and
sufficient access to funds The Liquidity Management
department calculates 1ts intra-day and overnight cash
position using internal cash forecasting systems

As AACB will have immediate access to funds when
required based on the Master Clearing Agreerment and
all borrowings are posted tn matching cuirency, the FX
nsk on funding is offset with the FX nisk on barrowings,
resulting In minimal foreign exchange sk

The foreign exchange rnisk borne as a result of day-to-day
operating activities 1s mitigated by entering into foreign
currency transactions with other ABN AMRO group com-
panies As aresult of the foreign currency transactions,
the net position in foreign currency overall 1s nil




Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk 1s managed according to ABN AMRQ's
asset & liability management (ALM) framework as
approved by ABN AMROs ALCO Committee This
framework 1s designed pnmarily to transfer interest

rate risk out of commercial business lines to central
management of ABN AMRQ, allowing for clear demarcation
between commercial business results and results on
unhedged interest rate positions The execution of
decisions and day-to-day management of positions 1s
delegated to ABN AMRO's ALM/Treasury department

Management of capital requirements

On a sub-consolidated basis AACB meets the mimimum
capual and regulatory solvency requirements of Basel ill
The 403 declaration deposited by AAG safeguards the
going concern basis of AACB

As of 1 January 2014, parts of Base! ill are mplemented
within European banks through CRD IV/CRR Among
other changes, for AACB acting as a clearing member this
new legislation requires AACB to capitalise against CCP
exposures Under the Basel Il regime, CCP exposures
were exempted from capital calculations (2014 848
million RWA, 2013 0 mithon RWA}

{x EUR 1000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Capital
(FRS Capital 830 827 695 004
Composttion of Regulatory Capital
| - Common Equty Tier 1 (CET1) 716 503 676 471
- Dther Tier 1 Capital .
!r -Tier2 Capital - 4354
Total Regulatory Capital 16503 661,325
T:I'utal Risk Exposure Amount {TREA) 4126 847 2796 900
Basel I/ Il ratio 11,36% 24,36%
3 Basel{ floor ratio 8,86% 8,45%
Geographic breakdown TREA
Europe 76% 0%
, us 16% 16%
APAC 8% 14%
100% 100°%
Credit Risk breakdown per counterparty
Chents 23% 30%
:“Cent;a; cnun}erpames {CCPs) 2% 0%
Other 19% 3%
Third party exposures 66% 61%
AAB Intra-group ) 3% 39%
100% 100%
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consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 December 2014

r

ix EUR 1 000) Note 2014 2013
Income
Interest income 214 146 276160
: Vl;lterss't expenses 119742 139926
Net interest income -’;m o 1 . 94.404 86.234
Fee and commisston income - 877 203 862 129
‘; Fee and commission expenses 677.396 664 105
Net fee and commission income 7; o 2 199.807 193 024
Net trading income 3 o 1354 821
i Share of result In equity accounted investments 4 BE7 -
Other income 5 47877 9033
Operating income M3z 29117
Expenses
Personnel expenses 6 101 069 101 882
:_ G;neral and admimistrative expenses 1 143681 130682
Depreciaton and amortisation of {injtangible assetss 8 9683 11482
Operating expenses . 54433 284048

Impairment charges on loans and other recevables

9 969 1202

Total expenses 253464 245248
Operating profit / {loss) before taxation 90 865 48.868
Incoma tax expenses 10 16 586 13877
Profit for the year nam 34992
Attnbutabia to

! Owners of the company 142719 usgn
Non-Controfling interasts 21

b
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consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2014 _

{x EUR 1.000) 2014 2013

Profitfor the period N i 74279 38

Other Comprehensive income

Items that wall not be reclassified to the income statement

'L_ Remeasurement gatn / {losses} on DBO -179 -216

Associates - -69

[tems that will not be reclassified to the income jgﬂémn -179 -285
Income tax refating to items that wll not be reclassified to the income statement 57 69
Items that may be reclassified to the income silé en ’f ‘ -122 -216

ltems that may be reclassified to the income statement

———-
i Currency translation reserve 58 670 -38147
Available for sale financial assets 3915 6122
p i o - -
Other comprehensive income for the period hef o:13 62.585 -32.025
Income tax relating to compaonents of other comprehensive income -919 -242
[RCFT T

Other comprehensive income for the period aﬂ_epliggfgia -, 61.666 -32267
135.823 2.383

Total comprehensive income atinbuiable to
Owners of the company 135 823 2267
Non-controling interests - 121




consolidated statement of financial position -
as at 31 December 201{1 ¥

Before prafit apprepriation {x EUR 1 000} Note 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Assels
Cash and balances at central banks " 21166 124 608
Tii-'manclal assets held for trading 12 101504 51738
Financial investments 13 47 457 46233
- Securmes financing 15 9604 377 6 991 947
i.oans and receivables - banks 16 5716483 4983575
Loans and receswvables - customers 17 11 045959 10 345620
Equity accounted investments 19 21280 7503
. Property and equipment 20 10100 10095
Intangible assets 21 8749 4445
Tax assats 2 14685 16 284
Other assets Y} 28533 29885

Total assets ; 3 ) 26620293 23201933

Liabilities

Financral habilities held for trading 24 100 365 832w
) S_;.nurmes financing 25 1135840 1024 498

Que to banks 26 17 439 055 16 001 281
! bue to customers 27 6923713 5275333
i Issued debt 28 325 -
) P]'umsmns 29 5656 4042
i :I'a;( habilities 30 12.359 10634
; bﬂler tax habslities 3 172153 137934

Total liabitities RS 75.789.456 22.506.929

Equity

Share capital 15000 15000
L Share premium 250 250

athef reserves incl retained earnings / profit for the period) 786 535 2257
: Uﬂjler comprehensive tncome 29042 -32503

Equity attributable to owners of the company fhay e o 830.827 695.004

Equity attnibutabie to non-coatrolling interasts - -
Toial Equity o3 ¥ 830827 695.004

Total Liabilities and Equity S v g 2662029 23201953
Commitments and contingent labiities 3 8 855.231 6732352

@®
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consolidated statement
of changes in Equity _

{x EUR 1000)
Share Share  Retamed Remeasure- Cumency Financial Revaluation Unappro- Total Equity Total
capital Premum earnings mentonnet transiation invest- reserve  pniated attnbutable Equity
DBO on post- reserve ments result of to non-
smployment reserve the year controling
plans interests

1250 6121240}

Balance
asat31
December
2012

747 3306 -48.073 65.146 692616 5.005 697.621
by

Total com- -216 -38147 5880 348N 2388 121 2509
prehensive
income

LTransfar 65 146 -65 146 -

Sale shares -5126 -5126
subsidary

Lnfmnclend

Balance i : : 6600 - - 9186 -48.013 34871 695.004 0 695.004
as at31 : "
December LY. o
2013

—
! Total com- =122 58670 2996 74219 135823 135823
i prehensive

| Income

Transfer 348N -34 871 -

r Dnadend - -

Balance B o000 250/ 2123257, 12182 -48.073 74279 830827 0 830 827
as at3 Lt
December e
2014 P
Changes in ownership HCH (x EUR 1 000
Share position at 1 January 2014 - ; DY 100% 10.815
Additional capital 0% 1452
[_Pruceads from sale of 75% ownership interest 75% -38 670
Result 2014 -684
i Remeasurement 40 000
Share position a1 31 Decemher 2014 - o 5% 12913




consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2014

{x EUR 1 000) Note 2014 2013

Profit after taxation 14279 M99

Adustments on non-cash stems included in profit

. Income of equity associates and partnerships -887 -416
Depracaatma amortisation of {injtangible assets 9683 11482
" Pravisions and Impairments 205

Income tax expenses 16586 13877

Changes in operating assels and habilities

Loans and recenablos - banks -2199230 -1197085

Loans and recewvables - customers 308214 -441 571

{ Trad(_e-and other receivables 5119399 130 466

Due to banks 1553601 2465115

| Due to customers 1106824 -429 550

Net changaes in all other operational assets and Liabilities -498 814 563 254

'f' In:;c;me taxes paid -14870 221145

Cash flow from operating activities B ik 7 N 3 590,205 1729419
Investing actvities

, f’urchases of financial Investments -1263 -6 445

Divestment of subsidary 18 -9618 -257 238

’ lnv%stmg activities within the group -890 -50

Divestment activities within the group -2 458 .

© AACB-related activiies taken over from ABN AMRO - 243

Proceeds from sales, maturities and redemptions 6892 2805

: Purchases of property and equipment -5704 -5594

Purchases of other (inftangible assets 1774 -589

Cash flow from investing activities _ ; e ; -20.815 -23.340

Financing sctivities

- Subordinated habilites - -56 476
Issuance of debt certificates 325

Cash flow from financing activities R ok s 2 o 325 56.476

B 569 715 1651249

. 5.100.248 3.506.260

64 447 -57 261

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 december . e | 54w 5100248

Supplementary disclosures of operating cash Row informatign
J Interest income received 211 327 228508
Interest st expense peid -119313 -142.370

wdend income received 1144 3596 @
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Corporate information

AACB has its statutory domicile in Amsterdam and 1s a
wholly owned subsichary of ABN AMRO The financial
statements of AACB and ABN AMRO are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements of ABN AMRO
Group N V (AAG}

The Annual Financial Statements were prepared by
the Managing Board and authorised for 1ssue by the
Superwisory Board and Managing Board on 21 May 2015

For the purpose of its consolidated subsidiaries, AAG
makes use of the exemption under the terms of Section
403 of the Dutch Civil Code, Vol 2, and has 1ssued notices
of hability Based on this, AAG 1s joint and severally hable
for any liabiity ansing from the legal acts performed by
AACB

fn principle, AACB 1s not engaged in any proprietary
trading, operates at arm’s length of ABN AMRO and
therefore, provides clearing services as an independent
rmarket participant with its focus on third parties

Third party cleanng means that AACB guarantees its
chents vis-&-vis the exchanges and central counterparties
and undertakes the risk management of the {(financial)
positions of these often globally operating ¢hents AACB
also handles the admiristration of positions and the
financing of these positions for clients The clients are
predominantly on-exchange traders and professional trader
groups but AACB also services financial insttutions, banks,
fund rmanagers and brokers with its product portfolio
AACB does not service retall customers directly

On 3 December 2014 AACB sold 75% of sts shares in HCH
After this sale of the majonty of AACB's shares, HCH 1s
no longer consolidated as a subsidiary but reported as an
assoclate Further explanation 1s given in the relevant notes

accounting
policies

Y

Pl

Statement of compliance

The consohdated Annual Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as endorsed by the European
Union (EU) They also comply with the financial reporting
requirements included in Title 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch
Cwil Code, as far as applicable

Basis of presentation

The consolidated Annual Financial Statements are prepared

in accordance with IFRS {as endorsed by the European

Umion) on the basis of the following principles

» Farr value 1s used for
» Derwvative financial instruments,

» Financial assets and habilities held fer trading or
designated as measured at farr value through income,

» Avalable-forsale financial assets,

» Investments in associates of a private equity nature

» Other financial assets {including loans and receivables)
and lhabilities are valued at amortised cost less any
impairment, iIf apphcable,

» The carfying value of assets and hab:hties measured
at amortised cost included i a farr value hedge
relationship ts adjusted with respect to fair value
changes resulting from the hedged risk,

» Non-financial assets and liabilities are generally
stated at historncal cost,

» Equity-accounted nvestments are accounted for
using the net equity method

The accounting polictes used to prepare these 2014
consolidated Annual Financial Statements are consistent
with those applied for the year ended 31 December 2013
except for the changes as mentioned under ‘changes in
accounting policies’

The Annual Financial Statements are prepared under the
going concern assumption They are presented in euros,
which 15 the functiormal and presentation currency of AACB,
rounded to the nearest thousand {uniess otherwise noted)

@



Changes in accounting policies

On 1 January 2014, AACB adopted the following new
standards and amendments

» |IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements,

» IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements,

» IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, and
» Amendments to IFRS 10, 11 and 12 Transitional Guidance
The aforementioned standards have been adopted in
accordance with the transitional requirements as set out
In the standards and endorsed by the European Union

Consolidation 1s required when there 1s control, that is
which 1s defined as a combination of power, exposure
to vanability in returns and a link between the two

The application of IFRS 10, 11 and the amendments to
IFRS 10, 1% and 12 Transitional guidance did not result
in significant changes in AACB’s consolidated financiat
statements

IFRS 12 includes disclosure requirements for interests in
and risks ansing from subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and structured entities These disclosures

arg included in note 13 and are an integrat part of the
consolidated financial statements

Other amendments adopted

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Ligbilities
—-These amendments clanfy the offsetting requirements
for financial assets and financia! habilittes AACB has
concluded that the amendment has no significant impact
on its offsetting policies

|IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets — These amendments address disclosure
requirements for recoverable amount information if this
amount 1S based on fair value less costs of disposal

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for
annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

The amendment has no significant impact on AACB's
results or financial position

IFRIC 21 Levies — This IFRS interpretation apphes to all
government-related levies that are accounted for in
accordance with IAS 37 Prowisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets The timing of charging levies to
the income statement Is clanfied according to 1AS 37
The interpretation has no significant impact on AACB's
results or financial position

New accounting standards and interpretations

adopted by the European Union

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2011-2013) In December

2013 the IASB issued the annual improvements to IFASs

2011-2013 cycle, which were endorsed by the EU In

December 2014 The amendments are required to be

apphed for annual penods beginning on or after 1 July

2014 The impact of the amendments 1s currently under

review The amendments are listed below

» IFRS 1 First-ime adoption of international Financial
Reporting Standards — Meaning of ‘effective IFRSs’

» IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Scope exceptions for
joint ventures

» IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - Scope of paragraph
52 (portfolto exception)

» 1AS 40 Investment Property — Clanfying the
interrelationship between IFRS 3 and |AS 40 when
classifying property as investment property or owner-
occupied property

New accounting standards and interpretations
not yet adopted by the European Union

The following new or revised standards and interpretations
have been 1ssued by the 1ASB, but are not yet effective
for these Annual Financial Statements These standards
and interpretations are subject 1o endorsement by the
European Unmon and are therefore not open for early
adoption

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — In July 2014 the |ASB
published the final version of the new standard that
replaces |AS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and
Measurement The mandatory effective date of IFRS 9
will be for annual peneds beginning on or after 1 January
2018 ABN AMRO 15 currently assessing the impact on
its financial statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interest in Joint Operations {Amendments} - The
amendments add new guidance on how to account for
the acquisition of an interest in a Jjoint operation that
constitutes a business The amendments are required to
be applied to acquisitions occurring from the start of the
first annual pericd beginning on or after 1 January 2016

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers —
This standard was 1ssued in May 2014 it estabhshes a
comprehensive framework for determining when to
recognise revenue and how much revenue to recognise

@®
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IFRS 15 1s effective for annual reporting perods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017 ABN AMRO 15 currently
making an assessment of the impact on the financial
statements

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2010-2012 cycle - This

cycle of annual improvements comprises a total of eight

amendments related to seven standards The standards

amended are as follows

» IFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Definition of vesting
condition

» IFRS 3 Business Cembinations — Accounting for
contingent consideration in a business combination

» IFRS 8 Operating Segments - Aggregation of
operating segments Reccnciliation of the total of
reportable segments’ assets to the entity's assets

» IFRS 13 Far Value Measurement — Short-term
receivables and payables

» |AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Revaluation
method proportionate restatement of accumulated
depreciation

» |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures — Key management
personnel

» 1AS 38 Intangible Assets — Revaluation method -
proportionate restatement of accumulated amartisation

The requirements of this set of amendments are to be
apphed for annual perniods beginning on or after 1 July
2014 The impact of these amendments is currently being
assessed

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain accounting
estimates It also requires management to exercise Its
judgement in the process of applying these accounting
policies and to make estirnates and assumptions
concerning the future Actual results may differ from
those estimates and judgmental decisions Accounting
policies for the most significant areas requinng
management to make judgements and estimates that
affect reported amounts and disclosures are stated in
the related notes

Assessment of risk and rewards

In cases where AACB 1s required to assess risks and
rewards, when considering the recognition and
derecognition of assets or liabilities and the consolidation
and deconsolidation of subsidianes, AACB may sometimes
be required to use judgement Although management
uses 1ts best knowledge of current events and actions in
making assessments of expected risk and rewards, actual
asks and rewards may ultimately differ

Significant accounting Principles

The consolidated financial staterments of AACB include
the tinancial statements of the parent and 1ts controlled
subsidiaries They incorporate assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses of AACB and its subsidianies Non controlling
interests, held by third parties, in both equity and results of
Group companies are stated separately in the consolidated
financial statements

Basis of consolidation

Subsicharies are included using the same reporting period
and constsient accounting policies Intercompany balances
and transactions, and any related unrealised gains and
losses, are eliminated in preparnng the consolidated
financial statements

Unrealised gains ansing from transactions with associates
and Jointly controlled entittes are eliminated to the extent
of AACB’s interest in the enterprise Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment in the asset transferred

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those enterpnises controlled by AACB
Control 1s deemed to exist when AACB has the power,
directly or ndirectly, to govern the financal and operating
policies of an enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its
activities The existence and effect of potential voting
nghts that are presently exercisable or convertible are
taken into account when assessing whether control exists
Unless, in exceptional crcumstances, it can be demoenstrated
that such ownership does not constitute contrel Control
also may exist when the parent owns one half or less of
voting power but has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of the enterprise




The financial statements of subsidiares are included in
the conselidated financial statements from the date on
which control commences until the date on which
controf ceases Equity attributable to non-controlling

interests 1s shown separately in the consoldated balance
sheet as part of total equity Current period profit or loss
attributable to non-controlling interests 1s presented as
an attribution of profit for the vear

The annual financial statements of AACB include the following subsidianes and branches

Name Entitlements Established Consolidated Place Country
inthe year  inthe year registered office

ABN AMRO Clearing Chicago LLC 100% 1994 2009 Chicago United States
z ‘ABN AMRO Cleaning Hong Kong Lid 100% 1995 2008 Hong Kong Hong Kong

ABN AMRO Clearing Sydney Pty Ltd 100% 1998 2008 Sydney Australia
CABN AMRO Clearing Bank Frankfurt Branch N/A 2004 2004 Frankfurt Germany

ABN AMRO Clearing Bank London Branch N/A 2004 2004 London United Kingdom
[ ‘ABN AMRO Clearing Singapore Pte 100% 2005 2005 Singapore Singapore

ABN AMRO Clearing Tokyo Co Ltd 100% 2007 2007 Tokyo Japan
_ ABN AMRO Clearing Bank Singapore Branch N/A 2009 2009 Singapore Singapore

ABN AMRO Clearng Investments BV 100% 2014 2014 Amsterdam The Netherlands

Foreign currency
The consclidated financial statements are stated in euros,
which i1s the functional and presentation currency of AACB

Foreign currency differences

AACB applies |1AS21, The Effect of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates Transactions and balances in foreign
currencies are translated into euros at the rate prevalling
on the transaction date The financial performance of
AACB's foreign operations, conducted through branches,
subsidianes, associates and |oint ventures, Is reported
using the currency (‘functional currency’) that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying
events and circumstances relevant to that entity

Prior to consolidation {or equity accounting), the assets
and liabilites of non-euro operations are translated at the
closing rate and items of the income statement and other
comprehensive income are translated into eurcs at the
rate prevailing on the relevant transaction dates
Exchange differences arising on the translation of foreign
operation are included n the cuirency translation reserve
within equity These are transferred to the income statement
when the AACB loses contral, joint control or significant
influence over the foreign operation or on partial disposal
of the operation

Exchange differences arising on monetary items,
berrowings and other currency instruments, designated
as hedges of a net investment tn a foreign operation, are
recorded in equity {under revaluation reserves) in the
consohdated financial statements, untl the disposal of
the net mvestment, except for any hedge ineffectiveress
that 1s immediately recognised in the income statement

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at reporting date are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date Non-monetary
assets accounted for at cost and denominated in foreign
currency are translated to the functional currency at
transaction date

Non-monetary assets accounted for at far value ina
foreign currency are translated to the functional currency
using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value
was determined

Currency translation differences on all monetary financial
assets and habihties are included in operating income
Translation differences on non monetary items (such as
equities) held at fair value through profit or loss are also
reported through income and, for those classified as
avallable for sale, directly in equity within ‘Net unrealised
gains and losses on availlable-for-sale assets’

@
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The following table shows the rates of the relevant currencres for
AACB

Rates at year end Average rates

214 2013 ma 203

[vouo
Pou;;l_sterimg 0,78 0,83 0.81 085
Etiga;mra Dollar 1,61 1,74 1,68 1,66
Jupanese Yen 145,04 144,51 140,36 128,65
rH;ng Kang Dollar 943 10,67 10,30 10,30
;Qustrallan Dallar 1,48 1,54 147 1,38
[U_S —Is;llar 1,22 138 133 133

Recognition and derecognition

All purchases and sales of financial assets requiring
delivery withun the time frame established by regulation
or market convention are recognised on the trade date,
which I1s the date on which AACB becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial assets Forward
purchases and sales other than those requinng delivery
within the time frame established by regulation or market
convention are recogrused as derivative forward
transactions until settlement

Traded instruments are recognised on the trade date,
defined as the date on which AACB commuts to purchase
or sell the underlying instrument In the infrequent event
that settlerment terms are non-standard, the commitment
15 accounted for as a derivative between the trade and
settlement date Loans and receivables are recognised when
they are acquired or funded by AACB and derecogrised
when settled Issued debt i1s recogmised when 1ssued
and deposits are recognised when the cash 1s deposited
with AACB Other financial assets and liabiies, meluding
dernvatives, are recognised in the balance sheet when
AACB becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
asset or hability

Financial assets are generally derecognised when AACB
loses control and the ability to obtain benefits over the
contractual nghts that comprise that asset This occurs
when the nghts are realised, expire or substantially all nsk
and rewards are transferred Financial assets are also
derecogrised in the case that the bank has neither
transferred nor retained substantally alf risks and rewards
of ownership but control has passed to the transferee

Financial instruments continue to be recognised in the
batance sheet, and a hability recogrused for the proceeds of
any related funding transaction, unless a fully proportsonal
share of all or speciically identfied cash flows are transferred
to the lender without matenal delay and the lender’s claim
1s imited to those cash flows and substantially all the nisks
and returns and control associated with the financiat
instruments have been transferred, in which case that
proportion of the asset 1s derecognised

On derecogruvon of a financial asset, the difference between
the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and any cumulative gan or loss that had been
recognised In other comprehensive income 1s recognised
in profit or loss

Financial habiities are derecognised when the lability has
been settled, has expired or has been extinguished

Classification of financial assets

The measurement of financial assets and ther recognition

In the income statement depend on the classification of

the financial assets, being (a) loans and recewvables,

{b) held-to-maturity investments, {(c) financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss and (d) available-forsale

financial assets This classification determines the

measurement and recognition as follows

a Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted In an active market They generally arise
when money or services are directly provided to a
customer with no intention of trading or selling the
foan Loans and receivables are initially measured at
fair value (including transaction costs) and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, with the perodic amortisation
recorded in the iIncome statement

b Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets that consist of instruments quoted on
an actve market with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturines for which the positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity 1s demonstrated They are
imimally measured at fair value {including transaction
costs) and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, with the penodic
amoertisation recorded in the iIncome statement

¢ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include over the counter (OTC) denvatives and
related equity positions
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d Avaiable-forsale financial assets are those assets that
are otherwise not classifted as loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, or financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss

Classification of financial liabilities
Financial labilities are classified as labilities held for
trading, due to banks, due to customers, debt certificates,
subordinated habilittes and other borrowings Therr
measurement and recognition in the income statement
depends on the classification of the financial habilities
being {(a) financial habihties at fair value through profit or
loss, or {b} other financial liabilities This classification
determines the measurement and recognition in the
income statement as follows
a Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include OTC dernvatives and related equity positions
b Other financial hiabilities are initially measured at fair
value (including transaction ¢osts) and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, with the periodic amortisation recorded In
the income statement

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

A financial asset or financial hability 1s classified as held

for trading if 1t 15

» acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing it In the near term, or

» part of a portfolio of Wdentified financial iInstruments
that are managed together and for which there 15
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit
taking, or

» adenvative {except for a derivative that i1s a designated
an effective hedging mstrument}

Assets and liabiibies held for trading are initially recognised
and subsequently measured at fair value through profit
or loss Such assets and habihities anse where AACB

1s principal in a transaction between a chient and a
counterparty The counterparty risk 1s monitored by
AACB nisk management The (realised and unrealised)
results are included in "Other realised and unrealised
gains and losses’ Interest received {paid) on assets
(habilities) held for trading 15 reported as interest income
(expense) Diwvidends receved are included in 'Dividend
and other investment iIncome’

Impairment
An asset 1s imparred when its carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount AACB reviews all of 1ts assets at

each reporting date for objective evidence of impairment

The carrying amount of an impatred asset s reduced to
the net present value of ts estimated recoverable amount,
and the amount of the change i the current year prowvision
Is recognised In the income statement Recoveries,
write-offs and reversals of impairment are included in

the income statement as part of 'Change in provistons
for imparrment’

I, in a subsequent penod, the amount of the Impairment
on assets other than avallable-for-sale equity instruments
decreases, due to an event occurring after the write-down,
the amount 1s reversed by adustung the provision account
and 1s recogmsed in the Income statement

Impairment of loans and receivables

A financial asset (or group of financial assets} s imparred if
there 1s objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and thatioss event {or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
{or group of financial assets) that can be reliably estimated

AACB makes a distinction between two types of impairment
losses
1 Specific mparment losseg] Wr‘(l’ﬁffmtmﬁﬂ expos in es rf
significant doubts arise o
meet its contractual oblig
2 Incurred but not identified

date Specific or CO“eCT.IV 3
taken place due to the perlod that passes between
the moment that a loss event occurs and the moment
when the bank identifies this event and estabhshes
specific/collective impairment for the affected credit
exposure The scope of the calculation of the IBNI
impairments covers all financial assets which are not
yet recogrused as impaired All related off-balance
items such as credit commitments are also included
The IBNI calculation uses the Base! Il concept of
expected loss on a one-year time honzon adjusted for
IFRS elements such as applying a loss identfication
period (LIP) and a cycle adjustment factor {CAF}

I ots.ifel -




38 < Accounting policies

Impairment of financial investments

For financial investments, the recoverable amount can be

estimated as follows

» the far value using quoted market prices in an active
market,

» If a market for the financial asset I1s not active, the fair
value 1s determined with maximum use of market
Inputs, Including recent arm’s length market transactions
and reference to the current far value of another
instrument that Is substantally the same,

» f there 1s no active market for the financial asset and
the estimate of value cannot be made reliably, the
asset 1s reported at cost less imparrment

Imparment to avarlable-forsale equity Instruments cannot
be reversed through the income statement in subsequent
penods -

The recoverable amount for financial assets at amortised
cost 1s the estimated cash flow discounted at the onginal
effective interest rate




notes to the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1 Net interest income and expenses

Accounting policy for net interest mcome and expenses

AACB applies IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement. Interest income and expenses are recogmised
in the Income statement on an acerual basis for financial investments, designated at fair value through profit or loss on
non-trading derivatives using the effective interest rate method

The effective interest rate methad allocates interest, amortisation of any discount or premium or other differences ineluding
transaction costs and qualifying fees and commissions over the expected hives of the assets and llabilities

The interest income 15 a result of current account balances, {exchange} margin and securities financing

This tem includes interest income and interest expense from banks and customers

{x EUR 1 000} 2014 2013

Interest Income

0Of the Interest Incoma items the following amounts were related to

-——

X Interest income ABN AMRO Group companies 28 355 41 589
Interest income from associates 26 17
.
Interast income third party customers/banks 188 465 184.554

Total interest income A At AN 214.145 225 160

Interest Expense

Of the Interest Expense items the following amounts wera related to
.-

, Interest expense ABN AMRQ Group companies 55903 52 869
Interest expense to associates 43 iL
[ Interest expense third party customers/banks 63 796 86 983

Total interest axpense et ia e 119.742 139926
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2. Net fee and commission income

Accounting policy for net fee and commission income

Service Fees
Fees earned as services provided are generally recognised as revenue when the services are provided

Fees recognised upon completion of the underlying transaction
Fees anising from negotiating, or participating in the negotiatron of a transaction for a third party, are recognised upon completion
of the underlying transactton Commussion revenue 1s recognised when the performance obligation 1s complete

Transaction costs are included n the inutial measurement of financial assets and habilities other than those measured at fair
value through profit or loss Transactions costs refer to incremeantal costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition or disposal of a
financial asset or hability They include fees and commissions paid to agents, advisars, brokers and dealers levies by regulatory
agencies and securrbes exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties

{x EUR 1000) 2014 2013

The components of net fee and commission are
— -
[

L Net comnussions payment services -3 198 -796
Net commissions secunities and derivatives 198 40 197 136

e

| Nat commissions other 4 604 1684

Total net fee and commission income R . - 199807 133 024

0f the net commissions and fees tem the folloswing amounts were with

LNet fee and commission ABN AMRQ Group companies -614 2847
Net fee and commission Associates -131 691
{_ Net fee and commssion third party customers/banks 200552 194 486

Total net fee and commission income . 199807 193024

3 Nettrading income

Accounting policy for net trading income

In accordance with 1AS 39, trading positions are held at fair value and Net trading income includes gains and losses ansing from
changes in the fair value of financial assets and habilies held for trading, interestincome and expenses related to trading balances

{x EUR 1000) 2014 2013

Foreign exchange transaction results 812 351

542 470
Total other (unjrealised gains and losses S %ﬁﬁ'ﬁ 1354 :r4
4. Share of result in equity accounted investments
(x EUR 1 000} 2014 2013
Total realised results on equity accounte_@ifl ] ' i 887 -




5 Other income

Accounting policy for other income

Other ncome includes all ather banking actvihes such as market access services and results on ¢isposal of assets

{x EUR 1000} 2014 2013
Dwvidend 1100 3596
L Realised gain on financial transactions™ 39526 2973
Other eperating Income 7251 2469

Total other operating incame ' P 11877 9,038

* The item of 2014 consist mainly of the sale of HCH shares by AACB
* The item of 2013 consist mainly of the sale of LCH shares by ABN AMRO Cleanng London Branch

6 Personael expenses

Accounting policy for personnel expenses

Salanes and wages, social secunity charges and other salary-related costs are recognised over the penod in which the employees
provide the services to whreh the payments relate

Penston and post-rebrement benefit costs are based on actuanal calculations Inherent within these calculations are assumptions
including discount rates, salary increases and the expected return on plan assets ABN AMRO determines the appropnate discount
rate at the end of each reporting peniod This i1s the interest rate that should be used by all subsidianies to determine the present value
of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the benefit obhgations

{x EUR 1.000) 2014 2013

Personnel expenses are specified as follows
‘ _

i Salaries and wages 75634 77521
) gacual sacurity charges 9 446 8884
f;anﬁlon expenses 9779 9436

Cther 5210 6041

Total personnel expenses A i ) 101.069 101 882

On 8 monthly basis the personnel expenses (including pension costs) are accrued and checked with ABN AMRO On a quarterly
basis the payable amounts are settled

In 2014, just as (n 2013, the Dutch government imposed a wage tax payable by the employer for taxable wages above EUR 150
thousand per employese This tax is charged ta ABN AMRO and does not affect the remuneration of staff involved This tax is not
charged to AACB by ABN AMRD

The pension expenses are mainly related to the defined contribution plan of the substdiaries and the defined benefit plan in Frankfurt
For the pension policies of the employees in the Netherlands AACB refers to the Annuat Report of ABN AMRO

The remuneration of Global Senior Management {12 FTE) in 2014 was EUR 4 030 thousand (2013 EUR 4070 thousand) Remuneration
includes base salary, pansion costs and vanable remuneratton The ABN AMRO remuneration policy is applicable to all staff of
AACB The remuneration of the Supervisory Board members in 2014 was nil (2013 nil}
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2014 2013
The average number of FTEs related to staff expenses
Ep @ Netherlands 326" 343"
United Kingdom 108 108
[_(;e}man.\r - 22 23
I;a‘lgajm o 1 9
{_ Fra;tce ) 4 3
S_lr;gapore 34 32
[EPE" 13 13
Australia 53 a7
Chorgions 2 2
UnEe;i -States 194 197
'_Ilir;:zj! 7 6 -
Total S 78 7%

.
.

* The empioyees of the Netherlands have a contract with ABN AMRO wath the respe

to AACB

ctive expenses being charged by ABN AMRO

1. General and administrative expenses

Accounting policy general and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses cost are recognised n the penod in which the services were provided and to which the

payment relates

Banking tax

In 2012 the Dutch government introduced a banking tax that becomes payable on 1 October of avery year Banking tax 15 a levy
that s charged to the income statement at the moment it becomes payable The tax will be paid by ABN AMRQ and 1s included in
the fiscal calculation AACB i1s charged by ABN AMRO for the part tn accordance with the result of AACB

{x EUR 1000) 2014 2013
Other general and admtmistrative expenses can be broken down as foltows
Fé;c;?ta‘ff,_c;);u'acto;s and Consultancy costs 45729 362N
gaf;;;ed co;ts V 3605 2819
Info‘rn:;;lan ;cﬂhr{tilogy costs 21126 21 257
Housmg__ . 1627 8109
Pust: te—lép;o_n; and tra—néport i 815 1069
Market;g‘a n;;n;]l;c reI;t;ons costs ’ 853 919
Recharges from ABN AMRD Group companies 53140 47988
S 6425 5536
4361 6714
o 130682

143681




8 Depreciation and amortisation of (in)tangible assets

The accounting policy for depreciation and amortization is descnbed in Note 20 and 21

This item refers to the depreciabon and amorhisation of equipment and software

{x EUR 1 000) 2014 2013
Leasehold improvements — depreciation 707 1445
lr Equipment — depreciatian 172 220
IT equipment — depreciation 5536 7031

Purchased software - Amortisabon ang 1983

L

Depreciation and amortisation expenses R ’ 9,628 10 680
IT equipment - depreciation rebilled by ABN AMRO Group o 14 9
‘ Purchased software - Amortisation rebriled by ABN AMRQ Group 41 793
Total general and administrative expenses : 7 i i - ) 9683 11482

9 Impairment charges on loans and other receivahles

For details on the impairments we refer to the loans and recewables from banks and customers items in the balance sheet.
Please see note 16 and 17

{x EUR 1 000) 2014 2013

Tota! impairment charges on loans and other receivi;ii '_

10 Income tax expenses

Accounting policy for Income tax expenses, tax assets and tax liabilities

AACB s subject to income taxes in numerous junsdictions Income tax expense consists of current and deferred tax Income tax1s
recogmised in the mcome statement tn the penod in which profits arise, except to the extent that it anses from a transaction that 1s
recognised directly in equity

The Dutch cperations of AACB form part of a fiscal unity with AAG for corporate income tax purposes As a consequence, it receves
a tax allocation fram the parent company Such fiscal unety 15 alse in place for value added tax as well as wage tax purposes. Abroad, the
local operations form part of a tax grouping when possible under local legislaton Otherwse, it 1s seen as a separate taxpaving
entity

Due to the fiscal unity, the tax on Dutch deductible losses will be recognised in the iIncome statement as far as the total AAG result
1s a profit

{x EUR 1000} 2014 2013

The details of the current and deferred Income tax expense are presented below

| Current tax 16976 12917
- - . _
Deferred tax -390 960

Total income tax expenses . s 16.586 13877




44 < Notes to the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2014

The table below shows a reconcithation betwee the expected income tax expense and the actual tax expense The expected ncome
tax expense has been calculated by multiplying the profit before tax to the weighted average rate from branches and subsidiaries

{x EUR 1 000) 2014 2013
Profit before taxatian 90 865 48 869

[ Weighted applicable taxrate. 2978% 33,25%
Expected income tax expense o 27 060 16.297
Decrease n taxes resutting from -

Toxoompnons s’ -
Adjustments for current tax of prior panod -1790 -2425

[localTax* 33 81
Othiari — -43 -2
Actual income tax expenses 16 586 13877
Effective tax rata o -18,25% -28,40%

* This amount concerns the tax exemption on the sale of the shares of Holland Clearing House

** Local tex mainly relates 1o US state tax which is calculated by multiplying the income with the applicable tax rate

Country by Country reporting

The following table provides an averview of total operating income, average number of FTE's, net profit/{loss) far the year, ncome
tax expense and received government grants per country In addrion the marn activity for all principal subsidianies is Clearing

Principal subsidiary Total Average Operating Income
Qperating number of profit/{loss) tax
Income FTEs before expense
{x EUR taxation {x EUR
’ 1000) {x EUR 1000}
1000)
Netherlands ABN AMRO Clearing Bank NV 195 792 326 22923 13222
Ofwhich -
mternational
activities
Great Bntain ABN AMRO Clearing Bank Londan Branch 1445 108 4782 3836
United States  ABN AMRO Cleanng Chigago LLC nen 194 28 469 28418
Singapore ABN AMRO Cleaning BANK Singapore Branch 21143 k73 3030 8027
Japan ABN AMRO Cleanng Takyo Co Ltd 13253 13 5 654 4800
Hang Kang ABN AMROD Clearing Honk Kong Ltd 20235 23 11793 10411
Australia ABN AMRO Clearing Sydney Pty Ltd 19 852 53 8035 5331
Other - 3 169 235
e 344 329 784 90 855 n2m




notes to the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2014

ASSETS

11. Cash and balances at Central banks

Accounting policy for Cash and balances at Central banks
Cash and balances at Central banks comprise cash on hand, freely available balances with central banks and other non-derivative
financial instruments with less than three months maturity from the date of acqusiion

All cash and cash equivalents are available for use in AACB's day-to-day operations

{x EUR 1000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Total cash and halances at Central banks 21.166 124 608

12 Financial assets held for trading

Accounting policy for Financial assets held for trading

In accordance with 1AS39, all assets and habilities held for trading are held at farr value with gains and loses in the changes of
the fair value taken to Net trading income n the income statement. Trading assets and trading Iiabilites manly include assets
and liabilrties that are classified under IFRS as “trading” but are closely related to facilitating the needs of AACB's clients

From a nsk perspective, the gross amount of trading assets must he associated together with the gross amount of trading
liabilitves, which are presented separately on the statement of financial posiion However, IFRS does not allow netting of these
posrtions 1n the statement of financtal posivon See also note 24

Financial assets and habilties held for trading mainly includes derivatives contracts Denvatives include forwards, futures, swaps
and options, contracts, all of which derive their value from underlying interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity instruments
or credit Instruments

{x EUR 1 000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
The trading assets consist of the following financial instruments
] Over tha- counter {OTC) 78202 36 541
. Contract for Differences (CFD's) 23302 15197

Total financial assets held for trading - . . g Ry ' 101 504 51.738

The nottonal amounts of the OTC dervatives are EUR 3 243 million as per 31 December 2014 (2013 1 116 mithon}

The shares used for hedging the Contract for Differences amount to EUR 21 mullion as per 31 December 2014 {2013 16 million)

13 Financial investments

Accounting policy for Financial investments

Financial investments are held at fair value with unrealised gains and losses recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
net of applicable taxes When Financial investments are sold, colfected ar imparred, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in
other comprehensive income 15 transferred to ‘Other income’ in the iIncome statement

Interest-beanng securiies and equrtes classified as Financial investments are assessed at each reporting date as to whather
they are :/mpaired

@
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If any ohjective evidence exists for Financial investments debt securitias or equity secunities, the cumufative loss measured as
the difference betweaen the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment foss on that financial asset previously
recogmised In net result 1s remaved from equrty and recognised in the Income statement within realised capital gains on investments

If, ;m a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt security classred as available for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurning after the impairment lass was recognised in the profit and loss account, the impairment
loss 1s reversed through the profit and loss account

See also Note 14 Aceounting pohcy Fair Value of Financial instruments for more informaton about impairments on Financial
investments

{x EUR 1 000) 2014 2013
Mgovements in the iinancial investments were as follows
rOpenlng balance as at 1 January 46 233 38163
_ - - _
Sales to third parties -6 835 -2793
Addmons 2154 B 445
Gross revaluation to equity 3016 6122

Exchange rate differences 2889 -1704
Closing balance as at December 31 Ciger 47457 45233

There were no impairments on the investments available for sale in 2014 or 2013

For the Financial investments divided to the levels as intreduced by the fair value hierarchy see note 14

14, Fair value of financial investments

The classification of financial instruments ts determined in accordance with the accounting policies set outin note 12 Financial
assets heid for trading, note 13 Financial investments and note 24 Financial habilmes held for trading

Accounting policy for Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value i1s defined as the pnice that would be received when selling an asset or paid when transferring a hability in an orderly

transactron between market participants at the measurement date To determine a rehable fair value, where appropnate,

management apphes valuation adjustments to the pricing information from the following sources

Level 1 the quoted market price for financial instruments that are actively traded

Level 2 arecent market transaction or a vartety of valuation techniques referning to a similar instrument for which market prices
do exist.

Level 3 using a valuation techmque where at least one input with significant effect on the instrument's valuation, 1s not based
on observable market data A significant effect on the instrument’s valuation 1s considered to be present when the
unabservable input accounts for at least 10% of the total instrument’s fair value

AACB analyses financial stnstruments held at fair velue into the three categortes as descnbe above The level 3 instruments
have been valued using a valuation technique where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the instrument's
valuation, 1s not based on ahservable market data

The following table presents the carrying value of the financial instruments held and or disclosed at fair value across the three
levels of the fair vatue hierarchy

{x EUR 1000)

At 31 December 2014 Quoted pnices Valuation technique Valuation technique Total
n active market observable market data unabservable market data

Financral assets hetd for trading 21838 79 658 - 101504

Financial investments 15557 - 31400 47 457

Total financial assets 79.668 31.900 148 961
Financial labilites held for trading 78853 - 100 365
Tatal financial liabitities 78853 - 100 365




{x EUR 1000}

At 31 December 213 Quoted prices Valuation technique Valuation technique Total
in active market observahle market data unobservable market data

Lﬁnanctai assets held for trading 15197 36 541 - 51738

Financial investments 20 968 - 25 265 45 233

Total financial assets A 36541 25.265 9797

Financial habilities held for trading 16 666 36 541 - 53 207
Total financial liabilities To66 PR 36,541 . 53207

Within investments available for sale AACB owns shares of exchanges These shares are classified in the table above as Level 3,
Valuation technique unaobservable market data The valuation price 1s based on the last known transaction prnice

The fair value of all other financial assets and habiliies to approximate their carrying value in the balance shest due to their short
term nature

15 Securities financing

Accounting policy for Securiies financing

Secures financing consists of securmes borrowing and lending and sale and repurchase transactions Securihes borrowing and
securties lending transactions are generally entered into on a collateralised basis, with securties usually advanced or recewed

as collateral The transfer of the securities themselves is not reflected in the statement of financial positon unless the nisks and
rewards of ownership are also transferred |f cashis advanced or recewved, securties borrowing and lending activibes are recorded
at the ameunt of cash advanced or receved The market value of the securiies borrowed or lentis monitored an a daily basis, and
the collateral levels are adjusted in accordance with the underlying transactions Fees and interest receved or pawd are recognised
on &n effective interest basis and recorded as interest income or intarest expense

Sale and repurchase transactions involve purchases (or sales) of investments with agreements to resell (or repurchase)
substanually identical investments at a certain date in the future at a fixed price Investments purchased subject to commitments
to resell them at future dates are not recognised The amounts paid are recogmised in Securities financing and are shown as
coflateralised by the undertying secunty

Investments sold under repurchase agreements continue to be recognised 1n the statement of financial position The proceeds
from the sale of the investments are reported as habilities to either banks or customers The difference between the sale and
repurchase price 1s recognised over the period of the transactron and recorded as interest Income or interest expense, using
the effective intarest method If borrowed securres are sold to third parties, the proceeds from the sale and & hability for the
obhigation to return the collateral are recorded at fair value

The receivables relating te the secunties financing refers to the {cash} collateral requirements of counterparties or the cash
settlement of the securities transactions

{x EUR 1000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Reverse Purchase agreements and securities borrowing 8215339 5261203
? Transactions related to securities 1389038 1720744

Total securities financing ' , ook X i 9.604.377 £.981.947

Of the Securities financing the following counterparties were involved
—

1 ABN AMRO Group companies 5791 101 4166 687
Banks 1711017 969 857
| Customars 2102259 1845 403

Total securities financing : : A 9604.377 6.981.947

@




48 < Notes to the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014

16. Loans and receivables - banks

The accaunting policy for loans and receivables

According to IAS 38 Financial instruments, loans and recevables from banks and customers are held at amortised cost, 1e farr value at
intal recognition adjusted for repayment and amortisation of coupon, fees and expenses ta rapresent the effective interest rate of
the asset or hahility

Finance lease recevables are recogmised in ine with 1AS 17 When ABN AMRD transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks
and rewards resulung from ownership of an asset, the bank acts as lessar and the finance lease recervables repesents the
discounted mimmum payments recelvables under the terms fo the contract The leased asset is not held on the balance sheet.
Where ABN AMRO is the lesseae, the leased asset is recognised tn Property and equipement.

This includes all accounts recervable from customers relatng to business operations, insofar as these are not categorised as
cash and cash equivalents or trade and other recevables

Impairment losses on loans and recewvables

A specific [ean impairment is estabhished if there 1s objective evidence that AACB will not be able to collect afl amounts due

in accordance with contractual terms The amount of the imparment 1s the difference between the market value of the client
position (recoverable amount) and the obligations to AACB or to counterparties where guaranteed by AACB in its function as a
clearing member

Impairments are recorded as a decraase tn the carrying vatue of due from banks and due from customers

When a specific loan s identified as uncollectible and all legal and procedural actions have been exhausted, the loan is written
oft against the related charge for impairment; subsequent recovertes are cradited ta change in provisions for impairment in the
income statement.

This item includes all accounts recevable from credit institutrons that relate to business operations and own bank accounts and
do not consist trade and other receivables

As of 31 December 2014 no amount has a maturity of more than 3 months (2013 0)

{x EUR 1000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Loans and receivables - banks consisted of the following

| Demand recevables 5713244 4978975
S
Interest bearing deposits 1870 327
| Mandatory reserve deposits with central banks 1369 1323
el < == -
Net loans and receivable - banks ¥ m S 5.716 483 4983575

-~ it b —— -

None of the amounts in the loans and revevables -banks items were subordinated in 2014 or 2013

(x EUR 1000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Of the loans and receivables - banks item the following amounts were due from

ABN AMRD Group companies 4724094 3837037

Thurd parties 992 389 1146538

Total loans and receivable - banks e LA 5716 483 4933 575




17. Loans and receivables - customers

The accounting policy for loans and receivables is incltuded in note 16

As of 31 December 2014 no amount has a maturity of more than 3 months but less than a year (2013 34 million)

{x EUR 1 000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

The compositian of loans and receivables - customers at 31 December is as follows

. Commercial loans 8 508 050 8934 1656
L —
Receivables from Central Counter parties 2462719 2034812

Total loans and receivable - customers l_';' L 11.070.829 10.968.978

Less loan impairment -24 870 -23 358
Net loans and receivable - custamers e ; ;& . ‘ 11,045,959 10'945.620

All commerc:al loans are fully collaterahsed (e g cash, equrties, bonds}

{x EUR 1 000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Of the loans and recevables - customers item the following amounts were due from
i ABN AMRO Group compames 271 46 58312

Thurd partias 11018 713 10 887 308
Total due from customers Y Lk 11.045.959 10.945.620

The tem ABN AMRO Group companies include a granted term loan to ABN AMRO Group companies of EUR 1,4 mllion
(2013 EUR 5,9 million) The effective interest rate is the applicable market reference rate (i e Eonia, Soria) including mark up at asms length

18. Group structure

Accounting policy for business combinations

Allitems of consideration, including contingent consideration, transferred by AACB are measured and recognised at far value
as of the acquistian date Transaction costs incurred by AACB in connection with the business combination, other than those
associated with the issuance of debt and equity secunties, do not form part of the cost of the business combination transaction
but are expensed as incurred The excess of the purchase considaration over AACB's share of the fair value of the identfiable
net assets acquired {including certain contingent liabihities} s recorded as goodwill AACB measures the identfiable assets
acquired and the habilties assumed at the fair value at the date of acquisition

A gain or loss 1s recagmsed in profit or loss for the difference between the fair value of the previously held equity interest in the
acquirree and its carrying amount. Changes m interests in subsidianigs that do not resultin a change of control are treated as
transactions between equity holders and are reported in the equrty
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The table below provides details an the assets and habilites resulting from the acquisttions of disposals of subsidiaries and equty-

accounted investments at the date of acquisimion or disposal

{x EUR 1 000) 2014 2013
acquisitions divestments acquisitions divestments
Cash and cash equivalents -26 058 -4 496
Loans a'n:i ;c:wna]\:a-l:)—l;as - banks -22 231 516 784 -268 642
.L;Ja—ns ;nd r;calvables - customers 375615 -2 947
@Tty and eguipment -253
IntaAnnglbie ;;sets - -1 -259
@ssets - -369
Uth;ar‘;S;ets -5 21336 -3 068
@:t;banks o 24778 179 899
Due to::ustomars o 11 552 -881 946 91 805
[_Pl:vl;u;s 7 261
—A:crued expenses and deferred income 102
Fatile—:r_ll;blllt;a; i 775 -13389 4321
Ai\l_;n—c;)ntrollmg interest 5443
Total net assets acquired / Net assets diveste = -11 559 - -16 834
Cash used for acquisition / received from divestments
[_Tra::;ed_s— frnn—waﬂa_ 38670 15 900
- E;;h-;nd t;ash equivalents acquired / divested -48 288 243N -273138
Total cash used far acquisitions / A s 3 i‘j
received for divestments . . - 9618 2371 -257.238

There ware no acquisitions i 2014

Divestment 2014 Decrease of AACB’s ownership of HCH from 100% to 25%
Acquisitson 2013 AACB completed the acquisiion of the Custody activity
Divestment 2013 Becrease of AACB's ownership of EMCF from 77% to 25%

Accounting policy for subsidiaries

AACB’s subsidianes are those entries which  directly or indirectly contrels Contrel over an entity 1s evidenced by AACB's ability
to exercise its power in arder to affect the vanable returns that AACB 1s exposed to through its involvement with the entity
The existence and effect of potential voting nights that are currently exercisable are taken into account when assessing whether

control exists

The assessment of control 1s based on the consideration of all facts and circumstances AACB reassesses whether it controls
an investae If facts and eircumstances (ndicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control {power,

exposure to vanability in returns and a hnk between the two)

The financial statements of subsidi:anes are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date on which control

commences untll the date on which control ceases




Accounting policy for associates

Assaociates are those entrhies in which AACB has significant infiuence, but no control or joint control, over the operating and financial
policies Significantnfluence is generally presumed when AACB halds between 20% and 50% of the voting nghts Potential voting
nghts that are currently exercisable are considered in assessing whether AACB has significant influence Amongst other factors
that are considered to determine significant influence, representation on the board of directors, particspation in pohicy-makmg
process and matenal transactions between the entity and the investee are considered

Investments 1n associates are accounted for using the equity method Under this method the investment 1s imibally recorded at
cost of recogntion and subsequently increased {or dacreased) for post-acquistion net ncome (or Joss), other movements impacting the
equity of the investee and any adjustments required for impairment. AACB’s share of the profit or loss of the mvestee is recognised
in Share of result in equity accounted investments in the iIncome statement When AACB's share of losses exceeds the carrying
amount of the investment, the carrying amount s reduced to zero, including any other unsecured recevables, and recognition of
further losses 1s discontinued except f AACB has meurred oblhigations or made payments on behalf of the investee

Equity investments held witheut significant influence which are not held for trading or not designated at fair value through profit or
loss are classified as Financial investments

Restnictions on assets
The restnctions on assets for AACB’s subsidiaries and associates are related to regulatory requirements on capital There are no
other restrictions

19. Equity accounted investments

Accounting policy for equity accounted investments

Equrty accounted investments comprise associates Associates are those entries in which AACB has signficant influence {this 1s
generally assumed when AACB holds between 20% and 50% of the voting nghts), but no control or joint cantrol over the operating and
financial policies Investments in associates are accounted for equity method

{x EUR 1 000) 31 December 2014 31 Decemhber 2013

Equity accounted investments consist of the following

[ EuroCCP 8368 7503
HCH 12912* .

Total Equity accounted investments o 21280 7503

* This amount includes a remeasurement of the remaining HCH shares

EURQCCP

AACB incorporated the Eurapean Muftlateral Cleanng Facility N V (EMCF) on February 28th, 2007 to provide European CCP services
n & public imited company in the Nethertands EMCF s headquartered in Amsterdam Due to a high level of competition EMCF and
EuroCCP chose to combne their strengths and capabilities to deliver greater efficiencies and sustainable competiion to the European
market. To achieve this cooperation AACB sold the majority of the shares of EMCF to the owner of EuroCCP

tn January 2014, EMCF changed it’s name into EuroCCP

The shares of EuroCCP are not quoted on any market. There are four shareholders each holding 25% of the shares The company's
Supervisary Board consists of 6 supervisory board members (a representative from each shareholder and two indepandent members)

Holtand Clearing House
On February 28th 2011, AACB incorporated Holland Clearing House (HCH) HCH provides CCP Services for the denvatives
Mutulateral Trading Facility (MTF), TOM MTF The office of HCH 1s located in Amsterdam, the Netherlands

At the start of the year 2014 AACB owned 100% of the shares of HCH On December 3rd, 2014 AACB sald 75% of the shares to i
Intercontinental Exchange {ICE} After this transaction AACB no longer has cantrol over HCH However, based on the percentage |
of owned shares AACB does have significant influence The remaining shares (25% of the total 1ssued shares of HCH} are intially

valued at fair value represented by the guaranteed sale price of the remaiming 25% shares

The shares of HCH are not quoted on any market. There are twa shareholders, AACB 25% and ICE 75% HCH's Supervisory Board
consists of faur members (one 1s appointed by AACB, and three by ICE)
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The combined financial information of the associates include the following assets and liabilihes, ncome and expenses, and
represent the proportionate share

{x EUR 1 000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 492 210 351572

| Loans and recewables 59429 43730
—P;perty a_md equipment 159 238
@ng_lh-le"assets ) 328 305
Othér::sseu N 6755 4228
Total assets _ R ‘ ‘u ; - 558 881 400 073
[ ouetobanks 269551 270609
D;a to cust]:mers B 235714 84 858
r-:&t;c};ed |r;tr;rest, expenses and other habilities 8 497 3783

Total Liahilities _ Fi 513 762 359 250
Total Equity 45119 40 823

[—Net revenue 22 294 14113
Expenses 18 205 13985

e

L Other comprehensive iIncome {expenses) -325 -29
Tax expenses 937 53

Total comprehensive income _ s v 4701 432

{x EUR 1 000) 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Equity accounted investment ‘ 21280 7503

20 Property and equipment

Accounting policy for property and equipment

Property and equipment i$ stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any amount for impairment. At each balance
sheet date an assessment 1s performed to determine whether there 1s any indication of impairment If an tem of property and
eguipment 1s comprised of several major components with different useful lives, each component is accounted for separately
Addrtions and subsequent expendrtures (including accrued interest) are caprtalised only to the extent that they enhance the future
economic benefits expected to be derived from the asset. Depreciation is charged to the income statement an a strarght-kne hasis
over the estimated useful lives of items of property and equipment, and of major components that are accounted for separately

Depreciation rates and residual values are reviewed at least annually to take into account any change in circumstances Capriahsed
leasehold :mprovements are depreciated (n a manner that takes tnto account the term and renewal condrtions of the related lease

AACB applies the following principles regarding straight-line depreciation

- The useful lives for builldings are 30 years,

- The useful iife for leasehold improvements 15 10 years or the lesser of the lease term,
- The useful iife for IT equipment 1s maximum five years




Ix ELUR 1 000}

31 December 2018 31 December 2013

Total property and equipment . ! : oz 10100 10.095
The table below shows the categortes of proparty and equipment at 31 December 2014 against book value
{x EUR 1 000) 2014
Leasehold IT Equipment Other property Total
improvements and equipment
Acquisition costs as at 1 January 2014 5.220 36 506 2631 4357
Eﬂlvesmant of Brussel Branch - -13 -58 -n
Addittions - 5683 21 5704
{ Disposal - - -42 -813
Foreign exchange differences 464 304 177 3655
Acquisition costs as at 31 December 2014 o 44.419 211 52 §32
Accumulated depreciation 1 January 2014 -3m -29 296 -1.239 -34 262
i Dwestment of Brussel Branch - n 26 37
Depreciation expense -707 -5 536 -172 -6415
rDlsposaI - 750 25 775
Foreign exchange differences -337 -2433 -97 -2 867
Accumulated depretiation as at 31 December 2014 N ] -1452 -42 732
Property, plant and equipment as at -
31 Becember 2014 1._915 1.272 10100
{x EUR 1 000) 2013
Leasehold IT Equipment Other property Total
improvements and equipment
' Acquistion costs as at 1 January 2013 5579 35430 2745 43 754
Divestment of substdiary EMCF -159 -1164 -186 -1 509
" Additions 259 5067 268 5594
Disposal - -181 - -181
f Fareign exchange differences -459 -2 646 -186 -330
Acquisition costs as at 31 December 2013 2631 44 357
. Accumulated depreciation 1.lanuary 2013 -2.551 -25.540 -1.298 -29 489
Divestment of subsidiary EMCF 66 813 % 973
{ Deprectation expense 1417 5695 182 8294
Disposal - 175 - 175
Fareign exchange differences 1951 147 23713
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 December 2013 -29.296 -1.239 -34.262
Property, piant and equipment as at
31 December 2013 1210 1.392 10.095
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21 Intangible assets

Accounting policy for intangible assets

Tha Intangible assets rtem consists solely of software that is not an integral part of the related hardware Software s amortised over
three yaars urless the software 1s classified as core application software which s depreciated over its estmated useful Ifetime set

ata maximum of 5 years Amorbsation rate and residual values are reviewed at least annually 1o take into account any changes in
circumstances Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recogised as expenses when incurred

fx EUR 1 00D) 2014 2013
Acquisition costs as at 1 January 10 267 11954
@mem of s;bs;dla;y HCH -100 -1563
Add—I;lons 7 _ 1714 589
El;spo;al ; -138 -83
I;o;l;lén exchange differences " 1484 -630
Acquisition costs as at 31 December - : ; : 4 19287 10.267
Accumulated amortisation 1 January: -5 -5678
@\Et_m-en_t:of _suhs;:har_y HCH 9 886
Amortisation expense -3213 -1522
[sposal __ 55 &
Forergn exchange differences -116 409
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 December w5 3 -10538 -5822
Total intangible assets as at 31 December’ h BT 8.749 4445

No impawrments have been recorded to Intangible assets

22 Tax assets

Accounting policy for tax assets

AACB apphies |AS 12 Income Taxes it accounting for taxes on ncome Deferred tax s recogrised for qualifying temporary differences
Temporary differences represent the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and fiabilives for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxaton purposes The amount of deferred tax prowided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or
setlement of the carrying amount of assets and habilties, using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date A deferred tax asset s

recognised enly ta the extent it 1s probable that future taxabte profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recavered

Deferred tax assets and habilrites are offset on the balance sheetwhen there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets

against current tax lrabilraes and when the deferred taxes relate to taxes levied by the same taxaton authorry

The current tax asset s the caiculated tax posttion based on gctual ncome cver the years less the prapaymants made during the year

based on the profit estmations




{x EUR 7 000) 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Total current tax assets 2.926 4,568
The deferred tax assets can be catagonsed into

;[ Net investment hedge 10648 10648
Investments available for sale 15 323

.[ Property and equipment - 79
Accrued expenses and deferred income 1096 666
Total deferred tax assets 11759 11.7116
Total tax assets 14,685 16.284

23 Other assets

{x EUR 1000)

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

The table below shows the components of Other assets at 31 December

, Accrued other income

Related to securities transactions

. Prepayments
VAT and other tax receivable
Other

Total other assets

2421 5088
19 964 11410
3452 5658
1972 6873
724 856
28.533 29.885
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LIABILITIES

24 Financial liabilities held for trading
The accounting policy for financial habilites held for trading is included n note 12.

b EUR 1 000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

The financial hahilities held for trading consist of the following

@ver the counter (OTC) 78 202 36541
Contract for Differences (CFD’s) 22163 16 666

Total financial liabilities held for trading : e 100 365 53.207

The notional amounts of the OTC derivatives are EUR 3 243 million as per 31 December 2014 (2013 EUR 1 116 million)

The shares used for hedging the Contract for Differences 1s EUR 21 million as per 31 December 2014 {2013 EUR 17 miilion)

25 Secunties financing

The accounting policy for secunties financing i1s included 1a note 15

The payables relating to the secunties finrancing refers to the {cash) collateral requirements of counterparties or the cash settlement
of the securities transactions

{x EUR 3 000) 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Reverse Purchase agreements and securities borrowing 245216 291203
' Transactions related to securiies 890 624 733295

Total securities financing - TR 7 1135 840 1024498

26. Due to banks

Accounting policy for due to banks and due to customers

According to IAS 38 Finaneial Instruments, amounts due to banks and customaers are held at amortised cost. That s, fair value at
iniial recognition adjusted for repayment and amortisation of coupon, fees and expenses to represent the effective interest rate of
the asset or ability

{x EUR 1000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

N\
The table below shows the components of due to banks

Demand deposits 1225972 21643719
Time deposits 16 182 306 13 830 844
Dther deposits 30177 6058

Total due to banks _— e - 17 439 055 16 001281




0f the due to banks rtem the following amounts were with

Demand deposnsidue to banks ABN AMRO Group 241 485 1293702
Time depasits due to banks ABN AMRO Group 16178 034 13 825 886
Total ABN AMRO Group companies sy 16419519 15.119.588
Demand deposits due to third party banks 984 487 870677
[_ Time depostts due to third party banks 4872 4958
Other deposits 30177 6058
Total third party banks L A 1019536 881693
Total due to hanks 28 17439055 16.001.281

In 2014 no amount has a maturity of more than 3 months but less than one year {2013 EUR 17 million)

27 Due to customers

The accounting policy for due to customers s included in note 25

This tem 1s compnsed of amounts duse to non-banking customers

{x EUR 1000) 31 December 2014

31 December 2013

The table below shows the components of due to customers

- o

| Demand deposits 6264812 4370 866
Time deposits 658 801 682 680

| Other deposits - 3000
Other borrowings - 218787
Total due to customers i : 6.923.13 5.275.333
Other borrowings mostly relate to margin eccounts
The due to customers item can be sphtup between ABN AMRO Group customers and third party customers as follows

" Demand deposts due to customers ABN AMRO Group 304 151 30 245
Time deposits due to customers ABN AMRO Group 513 402 561 280
Total ABN AMRO Group companies - gy B17.553 591,525
Demand deposits due to customers third party 5960 661 4340 624

; Time deposits due to customers third party 145 499 121 400
Other deposits - 3000

! Other borrowings - 218787
Total third party customers o : 6.106.160 4,683,808
Closing halance as at 31 December B : 6923113 5275333

In 2014 no amount has a maturity of more than 3 manths but less than one year (2013 EUR 17 million}

@
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28. Issued debt

Accounting policy for 1ssued debt
Issued debt securtties are mibially recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, unless they are of a hybnd or
structured nature and irrevocable designated atinmal recognmon to be held at farr value through profitor loss

This debt 1s 1ssued for Regulatory reasons It will be valued at fair value being amortised cost unless the circumstances are changed

AACB apphes |AS 32 Financial instruments Presentation to determine whether funding 1s either a financial hability or equity Issued
financial nstruments or their components are classified as financial habilizes where the substance of the contractual arrangement
results In AACB having a present obligation to deliver erther cash or another financial asset or to satisfy the obligaten other than by the
exchange of a fixed number of equity shares

This debt s 1ssued for Regulatory reasons

{x EUR 1000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

The 1ssued debt consists of the following
i Bonds and notes tssued 325 -
Total Issued debt " s AN 325 .

29 Provisions

Accounting policy for provisions

A provision 1s recogmised 1n the balance sheet when AACB has a [egal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and tis
more likely than not, that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estmate of the amount
of the obligatton can be made

{x EUR 1 000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Defined benefit obhgatians ! 3870 3563
ﬁther 1786 479

Total Provision : by £l 5 656 4042

On the basis of infoarmation currendy available AACB determines with reasonable certanty that the expected cash outflow for the
year 20151s approximatgly EUR 1,2 mullion and approximatety EUR 1,6 million for the years 2016 - 2019

The defined benefit obhgaton refers to the retired employees of a hquidated German ABN AMRO company The pension plan is no
longer available for new emplayees

All other emptayees have a defined contribution plan




The following table reflects the changes in the defined benefit obligation

{x EUR 1 000} 2014 2013
Defined benefit obligation as at 1.January 3563 3454
I Total definad benefit expense 110 116
Remeasurement effects recogmsed 394 216
+ Benefits paid -197 -190
exit from consolidation scope - -33
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 Decemher i3 s v 1870 3.563
The rtem Other s related to contractual engagement provisions and the Incurred but not 1dentfied provision
{x EUR 1 000} 2014 2013
Opening balance as at 1 January 4719 a7
1L Addibons for the period 1307 432
Aelease for the period - -
Closing balance as at 31 December - ) 5 1186 479

On the basis of infarmatan currently available

30. Tax hiabilities

The accounting policy for tex liabilities 1s included in note 22

The current tax hability 1s the calculatad tax posiuon based on actual income over the year less the prepayments made during the
year based on profit estimations However, as the entities stated in the Netherlands form part of a local tax unity, prepayments
are macde and booked at central level Therefore, at year-end the full year amount of the Dutch tax 15 stll considered to be paid for

these entitigs

{x EUR 1000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Current tax habilities 9305 8190
tr Deferred tax habilities 3054 2444

Total tax liabilities 12.359

The deferred tax habilites are related to Financial investments
AACB owns equity Investments in exchanges (LCH, BATS, TOM} These investments will be taxed when realised through disposal
The deferred tax habifity of EUR 3 054 reflects the tax impact of an upward revaluation of the Financial investments in the annual

accounts
Taxation will hecome due on potential capital gains at disposal of these assets
There were no write-downs of deferred tax habilities during 2014 or 2013

10.634
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{x EUR 1 000) 31 December 2014

31 December 2013

31 Other liabilities

The table below shows the components of Other liabilties at 3t December

Fe-la;ted ;: ;;:ml;s t;ansactmns ] 108 269 89 846
_I‘\;:;:;unts payable 5272 6978
Dmr;i:ﬁ;;tva‘x pay;l;le 1092 4 258
ﬁbﬁlng c;s_t t_)v ABN AMR_D Group 45037 13 084
[ other ' 12483 23768
Total other liabilities R - 172153 137934

32 Equity

Accounting policy for equity
Share capital and other components of equity

Preference shares

Preference shares which are non-redeemable and upon which diwvidends are declared at the discretion of the Company are

classified as equity

Other reserves
The cther reserves mainly comprise retained earnings, the profit for the period and lega! reserves

Currency transiation reserve

The currency translation reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses on the translatios of the net investment in foreign

operations, net of the effect of hedging

Financial investments reserve

In this component, gains and losses anising from a change in the fair vatue of available-for-sale assets are recogmised, net of
taxes, excluding imparment losses recognmised in the income statement and gains 2nd losses on hedged financial instruments
When the relevant assets are sold or otherwise dispased of, the related cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity 15 recycled

to the ncome statement.

Revaluation reserve

The Revaluation reserve 1s compnsed of the currency translation differences ansing on translation of the currency of these

Instruments to euros, insofar as they are effectve

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognised as a distribution of equity in the period In

which they are approved by shareholders

The 1ssued and paid-up share capital of AACB did not change in the year 2014 Authonised share capital amounts to EUR 50 000 000
distributed over 50 000 shares each having a nominal value of 1000 Of this authorised share caprtal, 15 000 shares were 1ssued

and pa:d up against a nominal value of 1000 Atyear-end 2014, all shares were held by ABN AMRO

{x EUR 1 000) 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Share capital 15000 15 000
| Share premium 250 250
Other reserves incl retained earmings/profit for the penad) 786 535 712257

‘ Other components of equity 20042 -32 503

Sharehalders’ equity ' 5 830 827

For the details an the changes ih shasreholders’ equity wa refer to the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

®




{x EUR 1 000) 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Gross AFS reserve 15221 1307
Related tax -3039 2121
LAFS reserve 12182 9186
Gross Remeasurement on net BB0 on post employment plans -463 -285
| Related tax 126 69
Lﬂemeasurement on net DBO on post employment plans -337 -216
Currency translation reserve 65 270 6 600
Gross revaluation reserve -64 229 -64 229
. Related tax 16 156 16.156
[jevaluatmn reserve -48 073 -48.073

Total other components of equity ' . Mo, 29.042 ~32.503

The Currency tranglation reserve contains the equity revaluation of the subsidiaries

The Gross revaluation reserve cantains the Net Investment Hedge (NIH) which is defined as the hedge of AACB netinvestment in
foreign operations by matching the foreign currency gains or losses on a derivative or hability against the revaluation of a foreign
operation based on period end exchange rates The gain or foss on the hedging instruments recorded in equrty to offset the
translation gains and losses on the net investment, to the extent that the hedge 1s highly effective The neffective portion of the
hedge relationship 1s recogmised in the profit or loss This NIH policy was apphied unbl 31 December 2010

The tax on revaluaton reserve can be split in two categories From the total ameunt of EUR 16 1 mifiton an amount of EUR 11 1 million
15 related to the deferred tax asset of the NIH (see note 23} The remaming amount of EUR 50 mullion is related to the changes in the
NIH up to and including 2009 Until that year the tax amount of the NIH was already settfed with the tax authoritres

{x EUR 1090} 2014 2012
Unrealised gains as at 1 January -32 503 -20
Unrealised gains during the year 3737 5837
Unrealised currency translation differences 58 669 -38 147
Related tax -861 -173

Other components of equity as at 31 December ‘ ; F . 29 042 -32 503
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33 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Accounting policy for commitments and contingent hahilities

Contingencies

Contingent hiabiities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events, and present
cbligations where the transfer of economic resources 1s uncertain or cannot be rehably measured Contingent habilities are not

recogntsed on the balance sheet but are disclosed unless the outflow of economic resources Is remote

Guarantees

AACB provides guarantees and letter of creditto guarantee the performance of subsidianes, associates and customers to third

parties AACB expects most transachions to be settled simultaneously with the reimbursement from customers

{x EUR 1 000} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

The guarantees and other commitments consist of the following

| Securties borrowing 8 288 680 6328 155
Guarantees 566 551 404 197
Total guarantees and other cummitmem‘s.‘ . £ 8855.231 6 7132 352
The guarantees have been given ta third parties and are divided as follows

[Gua;amees given to subsnd;arles 545 306 388 362
7Gu;|:z;nt;a;s given to associates 13600 -

mar;t;eé ;is;ren to Exchanges 8245 15835
Total Guarantees ' o ; - I 566 551 404 197
Other commitments ansing from securities borrowing censists almost entirely of related parties
All these sacurites are borrowed from the parent company

EI?!EI g_uat:an_tées nm! ot_her commitments 8 855.231 6732 352
Secured by coflateral 8 288 680 6328 155
Net guarantees and other commitments . !' ‘ SR Q;‘ . 566 551 404 197

The contractual amounts of guarantees are set out by category in the following table
31 December 2014 (x EUR % 000)
less than Between Between After Total
one year one and three and Syears
three years five years
Guarantees given to subsidianes 123416 298474 - 123416 545 306
Guara—n-t;_s gdl\_ren—to asso_mats;s 13000 - - 13000
Guarama:s givan t:: axc;la;lges N - - - 8245 8245
Total Guarantees by %98 47 - 131 661 566 551
31 December 2014 {x EUR 1000}
less than Between Between After Total
one year one and three and 5 years
three years five years
Guarantees given to subsidiaries 146 496 132 882 - 108 984 388 362
Guaraage; gl@n ;;;;c;lar:gas ) 7 - - - 15835 15835
Total Guarantees JSHoORE fl eiem . 1 404197

@®




Many of the guarantees and other commitments are expected to expire without being advanced in whele or in part. This means
that the amounts stated do not represent expected future cash flows

Leasing

AACB only enters into leases classified as operating leases (including property rental} The tatal payments made under operating
leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-hine basts over the period of the lease Lease incentives recewved are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the total lease expense

AACB leases offices and other premises under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements The leases have various terms,
escalation and renewal nghts There ara no contingent rents payable AACB also leases equipment under non-canceliable lease
arrangements

{x EUR 1 000) 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Where AACB 15 the lessee, the future mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows
Not more than one year 713 749

Longer than one year but not longer than five years 798 1613

Longer than five years - -

Total operating lease agreements e 1511 2.362

34. Pledged and encumbered assets

Accounting policy for pladged, encumbered and restricted assets

Pledged assets are assets pledged as collateral for habilites or contingent habilitias and the terms and condions relating to its
pledge Encumbered assets are those that are pledged or other assets which we believed to be restricted to secure, credit-enhance
or coliateralise a transaction

In principle, pledged assets are encumberad assets

Significant restrictions on assets can anse from statutory, contractual or regulatory reguirements such as

- Those that restrict the ability of the parent ar its subsidianies to transfer cash or other assets to {or fram) other entibes within
the group

- Guarantees or other requirements that may restrict dividends and other capital distnbutions being paid, or loans and advances
being made or repaid to other entities within the group

- Protective nghts of non-controlling interests might alse restrict the ability of the Group to access and transfer assets freely to or
from ather entsties within the Group and to settle habilties of the Group

AACB only has restrictions due to the prevailing regutatory requirements per region

Pledged and encumbered assets are assets given as secunity to guarantee payment of a debt or fulfilment of an obligatian
Predominantly the following activities conducted by AACB are related to pledged assets

» Cash provided as collateral towards CCP's to secure trading transactions,

» Cash pledged to secure lending in reverse repurchase transactions and securties borrowing transactions,

» Cash and secunties pledged to secure CFD or OTC transactions

AACB has a cleaning member contract with various CCP's Such contracts contan the rules and regulations in relation to cash
provtded as collateral These rules and regulatons for a clearing member can be found on the relevant CCP's websites
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{x EUR 1000} 3 December 2014 31 December 2013

Assets pledged

@;s_i{n_ar;c:n_g assets— 7888 407 b 227 509
FlnancTarass;ts heIEfur trading 21836 16018
| Loans and recewvables - banks . 233%
Luar:;;d';e;:;;vailles - customers 2462779 2039645

Total assets pledged as security R B . 1031022 7 306 508

Off balance sheet collateral held as security for assets mainly as part of professianal securmies transactions AACB obtain securties
on terms which permit it to re-pledge the securrties to athers

35. Related Parties

Parties related to AACB include the parent ABN AMRO Bank N V wath significant influence, associates, the Managing Board, the
Supervisary Board, close family members of any person referred to above, entiies controlled or significantly influenced by any
person referred to above and any other related entities

Transactions

As part of ds business operations, AACB frequently enters into transactions with related parties Normal banking transactions relate
to transactions, leans and deposits and are entered into under the same commercial and market terms that apply to non-related
parties ABN AMRO owns all the shares of AACB The amounts wrth related parttes are mentioned in the applicable notes

Labour contract employeas Amsterdam
Every employee of AACB has a labour contract with ABN AMRO The total salary costs including pensions and social security
charges in 2014 was EUR 41,710 milhon {2013 EUR 41,064 milhon} The salary costs are paid by ABN AMRO and rebilled to AACB

36 Cash flow statement

Accounting policy for Cash flow statement

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, freely available balances with
central banks and other banks, net credit balances on current accounts with other banks, with less than three months maturiy

from the date of acquisiton The statement of cash flows, based on the indirect method of calculation, gives details of the source of
cash and cash equivalents which became available during the year and the apphication of these cash and cash equivalents gver the
course of the year The cash flows are analysedinto cash flows from operations, including cleanng activiies, investment activities and
financing activites Movements i loans and recevables and interbank deposits are included in the cash flow fram operaung actvities
Investment activiies are compnsed of acquisitions, sales and redemptions in respect of financial investments, as well as investments
n, and sales of, subsidiaries and associates, property and equipment The i1ssuing of shares and the borrowing and repayment of
long-term funds are treated as financing activiues

The follow:ng table shows the determination of cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

{x EUR 1 000) 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Cash and balances at central banks 21166 124 608
Loans and receivables banks {less than 3 months)* 5713244 4975640

Total securities financing 5734410 5100.248

* loans and recewables banks with a matunty of less than 3 months is included in Loans and receivables - banks, see note 16




37 Post-balance sheet date events

- tnMarch 2015 AACB has taken a provision of approximately EUR 12 million for a doubtful debt caused by the disconnection of
the Swiss francs from the Euro

- Dn 13 May 2015 the shares of the associates EuroCCP and HCH are transfarred from ABN AMRO Clearing Bank N V to Cleanng
Investments B V whuch s a 100% subsidiary of AACB

- On 21 May 2015 J R Dyst will step down as member of the Supervisory Board after signing the Annual Report.
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procedures _

ABN AMRO Clearing Bank N V and its subsidianies are
invalved In a court procedure

In August 2007, Sentinel Management Group, Inc
{*Sentinel”}, a futures commission merchant that
managed certain customer segregated funds for

ABN AMROQ Clearing Chicago LLC (AACC), filed for
bankruptcy Shortly before Sentinel filed for bankruptey,
Sentinel sold certain securities to Citadel Equity Fund,
Ltd {*Citade!”) The U S Bankruptcy Court ordered
funds from the sale to Citadel, to be distributed to certain
Sentinel customers AACC received its pro rata share
which totalized $52,755,815 On or about September 15,
2008, the bankruptcy trustee filed an adversary proceeding
{the “Complaint”) against all of the recipients of the
court ordered distnbution of funds from the Citadel sale,
including AACC The Complaint also includes a claim for
maoney AACC received shortly before Sentinel filed for
bankruptcy to the amount of $4,000,399 and a claim for
prejudgment interest which could range from $443,000
to $9,720,000 AACC, after consultation with legal counsel,
cannot yet express an opinion as to the ultimate outcome
of the proceeding AACC believes that claims are wrthout
merit and intends to wigorously defend against the
Comglaint Accordingly, no provision has been made

in the financial statements for any loss that may result
from the Complant

In the normal course of business AACC 1s subject to Iitigation
and regulatory proceedings AACC, after consultation
with legal counsel, believes that the outcorme of such
proceedings will not have a maternal adverse effect on
AACC statement of financial condition
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{x EUR 1 000} 2014 2013
rﬂesult from participating interests after tax 49 162 46 216
Qther result after taxes 25117 -11345

Net profit attributable to owners of the company: - I 14.219 U




company statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2014

{x EUR 1 00O} 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Assets
Cash and balances at Central banks 21166 89 508
T-Flr;a—nc_l—al a_;sets held for trading 101 504 51738
i Financial investments 40539 42 566
i; éecurmes financing 7318306 5660 831
Loans and recervables - banks 5088 396 4571108
\ Loans and receivables - customers 10126 333 9 585 486
i’amcnpanng interest in group companies 599 829 51991
) Equity accounted investments 21 280 7503
) Pr;perty and equipment 3847 4282
]ntanglble assels 1713 322
Tax assets 13575 13713
l' U;Lher aEsets 217 24126
Total assets 23.358.725 20.571 092
Liabilities
Financial lrabihties held for trading 100 365 53207
. Secuntes financing 656 260 417 816
) Due_to banks 17 364170 15910 001
" Due to customers 4290525 IU5 540
Issued debt 325 0
_ Provisions 5445 3810
Tax habilities 10 245 9893
 Other habiltues 100 563 75821
Total liabilities 22 521,898 19.876 088




70 < Company statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014

{x EUR 1 000) 2014 2013
Equity

i;gtlara cap‘rtal L 15000 15000
Sh;;a pr_emil—n’t o 250 250

@;r:e_s;rv;s I|;1cl retained earnings/profit for the penod) 786 535 712257
Uth;r;:om[;r;hé;lSlVB income 29042 -32 503
Total Equity BN s 830 827 595 004
Tota! Liabilities and Equity 4 . £i.358 125 20571 092
Guarantees and other commitments 7 } 033100 6 739358




notes to the company financial statements

Generzl

AACB's company financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Cwil
Code, applying the same accounting policies as for the
consclidated financial statements

Principles for the measurement of assets and
liahilities and determination of the result

For setting the principles for the recogmtion and measu-
rement of assets and habihities and determination of the
result for its company financial statements, ABN AMRO
Clearing Bank N VV makes use of the option provided

in section 2 362(8) of the Dutch Civil Code By making
use of this option, reconciliation 1s maintained between
the consohdated and the company's equity This means
that the principles for the recognition and measurement
of assets and habilites and determination of the result

Company statement of participating interests

{x EUR 1000)

for the year 2014

(hereinafter referred to as principles for recognition and
measurement) of the company financial statements of
ABN AMRO Clearing Bank N V are the same of those
appled for the consolidated IFRS financial statements
Participating interests, over which significant influence 1s
exercised, are stated on the basis of the equity method
The consolidated IFRS financial statements are prepared
according to the standards laid down by the international
Accounting Standards Board and adopted by the European
Union

Based on the 403 Statement of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code AACB is only required to publish company financ:al
staterments in an abbreviated format, containing as a
mimimum an abbreviated income statement and an
abbreviated staterment of financial position

2014 2013

Participating interest in group companies

The owned subsidiaries are

599 829 519911

. ABN AMRO Clearing Singapore Pte, with registered office in Singapore,

ABN AMRO Clearing Tokyo Co Ltd, wath registered office in Tokyo, Japan,
. ABN AMRO Cleanng Hong Kong Ltd, with registered office in Hong Kong,
ABN AMRO Cleanng Sydney Pty Ltd, with registered office in Sydney, Australia,

- -
'
'
'

ABN AMRG Clearing Chicago LLC, with registered office in Chicago, United States,

ABN AMRQ Clearing Investments B V, with registered office in Amsterdam, The Netherlands

The movemsnts in the participating interest i group companies, which are valued at net equity value, were as follows

, Balance as at 1 January
Acquisttion 1% EMCF

[ Increase of capital

Dividend pard out

-
L Exchange differences

EMCF

!FﬁResuIt for the year

Balance as at 31 Decemher

519911 385971
. 21

21374 156 627

37627 14549

47896 31167

. 23408

48275 46 216

N 529.629 519 911

@
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Company statement of consolidation

Entittements Currency Shareholders’ Net result Shareholders’
equity 2013 2014 equrty 2014
. {x 1000 {x 1000) {x EUR 1 000)
eur 100% uso 456 104 37783 3l
ABN AMRO Clearing Sydney Pte Ltd 100% AUD 102724 7849 69 385
&BN AMRO Clearing Hong Kong Ltd 100% HKD 963 731 107 278 102 251
ABN AMRO Clearing Tokyo Ltd 100% JPY 7290820 673 683 50 268
ABN AMRO Clearing Singapore Pte 100% SGD 4223 40 2630
ABN AMRD Clearing Investments BV 100% EUR 24 -1 24
-’ 599 229
Company statement of changes in equity
{x EUR 1000}
Share Share R d R Currency Financigl Revaluation Equity  Unappropnated Total
capital Premium eammgs onnetDBO on  trenslation  vestments reserve  Associates result
post-employ reserve reserve of the year
plans
Balance as a1 43073 - 65145 692616
31 December 2012 , .
Tots! comprehensve -147 B RN SE39 172 BN 2368
incoma A
[ Toaster 7390 8197 37 65 146
Dwidend
Balance 4s at =00 ; S ff%@ﬁ; Ty oesm 480m 465 MEN 695004
31 December 2013 : LY
Total comprehensive 122 2638 358 74219 77153
incoma
Translgzii— . ) 48N 58670 348N 58 670
Dividend
-1q7 M 8308277

Balance asat 157800} e e 63 v ¢ usi;g .

31 December 2014

prkat -A8.073




.
e s

acquisitions

No acquisttions were made by ABN AMRO Clearing Bank N V in 2014
Amsterdam, 21 May 2015

Managing Board

JB M de Boer

A Bolkovic

B Duinstra

M C Jongmans

L M R Vanbockrick
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other information
independent auditor's report

To The General Meeting of Shareholders of ABN AMRO
Clearing Bank NV

Report on the Audit of the consolidated annual
financial statements 2014

Opinion

in our opinion

» The consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of ABN AMRO Clearing
Bank N V as at 31 December 2014 and of its results
and its cash flows for the year 2014 in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union {EU-IFRS) and with
Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Cwvil Code

The statutory financial statements give a true and fair
view of the balance sheet of ABN AMRO Cleaning Bank N V
as at 31 December 2014 and of its results for the year 2014
In accordance with Part 8 of Book Z of the Netherlands
Civil Code

What we have audited

Woe have audited the accompanying consolidated and

company annual financial statements 2014 of ABN AMRO

Clearing Bank N V {the Bank}

The consolidated annual financial statements comprise

» the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014,

» the consolidated income statement,

» the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year
then ended, and

» the notes comprising a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information

The company financial statements comprise

» the company balance sheet as at 31 December 2014,

» the company profit and loss account for 2014, and

» the notes comprising a summary of the significant
accounting pelicies and other explanatory information

ff

The basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with Dutch law,
including the Dutch Standards on Auditing Our respon-
sibilities under those standards are further described in
the ‘Our Responsibilittes for the Audrt of the consolidated
and company annual financial statements’ section of our
report

We are independent of ABN AMRO Clearing Bank N V
In accordance with the Verordening inzake de onafhan-
kelykheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten
(Vi0) and other retevant independence regulations in
the Netherlands Furthermore we have complied with
the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants
(VGBA or Decree on the Code of Conduct for auditors in
the Netheriands)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained I1s
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Our audit approach

Summary

We planned and executed our audit by determining mate-
riality and assessing the risks of matenal misstatement in
the consolidated annual financial statements In particular,
we directed our audit to those areas where management
made subjective judgments, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are
inherently uncertain We also addressed the nisk of
management overnde of internal controls, including an
evaluation whether there was evidence of management
bias that may represent a nsk of matenal misstatement
due to fraud

The overall materiality on which we have planned and
executed our audit amounts to EUR 5 9 millicn which
represents 0 5% of total revenues for the year being
the benchmark used for determining matenalty

®




We conducted our audit at the head office and instructad
local auditors to audit the compaonent location in Chicago
We also vistted Chicago where we performed detailled
file reviews and had meetings with local management

Key audit matters

We identified the following key audit matters

» Risk management control framework through the
correlation haircut model,

» Diversity and complexity of fee arrangements and fee
revenues,

» Sale of 75% of Holland Clearing House NV ("HCH’),
and

» Relabiity and continuity of the information technology
and systems

Materiality

Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and will be
considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
and company annual financial statements We determined
certain quantitative thresholds for maternality These
together with qualitative considerations helped us to
determine the nature, tming and extent of our audit
procedures and the evaluation of the impact of identified
misstatements on our opinion

Based on our professional judgment we determined the
rmatenalty for the consolhdated annual financial state-
ments for the Bank as a whole at EUR 5 9 million, with
reference 10 a pnmary benchmark of gross revenues given
the company’s business and its main driver We have
applied this benchmark based on our assessment of the
general information needs of users of the consolidated
annual financial statements We believe that gross
revenues Is a relevant metnc for assessment of the
financial performance of the Bank, also given the relatively
high balance sheet total and the level of profit before
tax impacted by a one-off gain on sale and the rebilling
arrangements with ABN AMRO N V

We agreed with the Supervisory Board that all unadjusted
misstatements in excess of EUR 0 3 million, which are
identified during the audit, would be reported to them,
as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must
be reported on qualitative grounds

Scope of the group audit

ABN AMRO Clearing Bank NV has several branches
spread globally and 1s also the parent company of a
group of entities The financial information of this group 15
included in the consolidated annual financral statements
of ABN AMRO Cleanng Bank N V

As we are ultimately responsible for the opinion, we are
also responsible for directing, supervising and performing
the Bank audit in this respect we have determined the
nature and extent of the audit procedures to be carned
out for group entities

We scoped components of ABN AMRO Clearing Bank N V
into the group audit where they are of significant size,
have significant risks to the Bank or are considered
significant for other reasons

Applying these scoping critera led to a full scope audit
resulting in a coverage of 89% of total revenues and 82%
of total assets Furthermore, we performed analytrcal
procedures at the aggregated group level to corroborate
our assessment that there are no significant nisks of
materiat misstatement within the remaining non scoped
components

All components In scope for group reporting are audited
by KPMG member firms We sent detalled instructions
to the component auditors, covering significant areas
including the retevant nsks of material misstatement
and set out the information required to be reported back
to the group audit team We visited Chicago as the one
component location in full scope where we performed
detalled file reviews At this visit the planning, nsk
assessment, procedures performed, findings and
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cbservations reported to the group auditor were
discussed in more detail and any further work deemed
necessary by the group audit team was then performed
including meetings with local management

The consolidation of the group, the disclosures in the
consolidated and company annual financial statements
and certain accounting topics that are perfarmed at
group level are audited by the group audit team

By performing the procedures above at components,
together with additional procedures at group level, we
have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence
about the Group's financial iInformation to provide an
opinton on the consolidated and company annual
financial statements

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professionat jJudgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated and company annual financial
statements We have commmunicated the key audit matters
to the Supervisory Board The key audit matters are not a
comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed

These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit on the consolidated and company annual financial
statements as a whole and mn forming our opinion
thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters

Risk management contral framework through the
correlation haircut model

AACB’s day-to-day operations consist of the clearing and
settiement of targe volumes of futures and options trades
on behalf of clrents For that purpose AACB requires a
detalled and real-time insight into its chents and related
nsk exposures, requiring a scund risk management
framework on both an overall as well as an individual
client level This risk management framewaork 1s based
around AACB's so called ‘Correlation Hawcut Model’

('the model’) This model determines the required iquidity
position that chents should hold with AACB as collateral
The collateral 1s placed in the form of highly liquid deposits,
clients’ secunities and other iquid assets Based on the
client’s actual trading activity and market positions the
model requires collateral calls or collateral releases on
an individual chient level In calculating the net hiquidity
position and the collateral requirements the model uses
stress scenarias that it weighs on a basis of Iikelihood
and impact and factors Iin other market drivers such

as interest rates, volatihty and duration of underlying
exposures We have identfied the correlation haircut
model as a key audit matter as the maodel 1s cnitical to
the execution and continuity of the daily operations of
AACB

Our audit response

Audit procedures included, among others, an assessment
of the validation report that 1s the result of @ mandatory
yearly in-house vahdation exercise of the model by

ABN AMRO's quantitative analysis group This assessment
also included challenging the model validation conclusions
by Financial Risk Management Specialists Moreover, we
took note of the fact that for 2014 there were no defaults
{client’s defaulting on their positions without sufficient
collateral) This together provides evidence on the strength
and resilience of the model and the respective parameters
and stress scenarios used in the model as well as the
valuation and presentation of the respective client
positions on the balance sheet, both assets and liabilities
With performing the respective audit work over the
model and the related client positions we gained more
evidence over the continuity of the Bank given the vrtal role
of the madel for the Bank's iquidity and business madel

Our observation

Our audit procedures on the model did not result in
significant findings for the purpose of the audit of the
financial statements



Diversity and complexity of fee arrangements and fee
revenues

AACB's revenues mainly consist of fee and commussion
income and interest margin For the fee and commussion
income AACB operates a client centnic approach in
which most clients have a specifically agreed upon fee
per product and In some cases added with certan
volurne-driven incentives Considenng the velume of
the Bank’s client base and its product suite this resuits
In a considerable level of different revenue components to
be defined when auditing the overall fee and commisston
revenue in the consolidated financial statements

Our audit response

As a result of the above we have performed specific
tarlored audit work on fee revenue and on the Bank's
internal control framework over its fee and commission
revenue Also we have specifically assessed how fee
agreements are being reached and documented as the
diversity of fees combined with a large volume of chents
increases the nisk of error We tested the internal control
framework on existence and design and performed work
over Its operating effectiveness Besides controls testing
we also performed several substantive procedures such
as, amongst other, sending debtor confirmations and
reconciling source data systems to the Bank’s financial
reporting system

Our observation

We found that the fee and commuission revenue recorded
in the financial statements Is appropnately disclosed in
note 2 in accordance with IFRS

Sale of 75% of Holland Clearing House N V. ('HCH')

As of 3 December 2014, AACB sold 75% of their subsichary
Holland Clearing House (HCH) to Intercontinental
Exchange (ICE), with AACB maintaining a 25% share in
HCH HCH was a 100% consolidated subsidiary before
the sale of the shares Due to the sale, control in HCH

1s lost, however significant influence remains with the
entity being accounted for as an associate in AACB's
consolidated financial statements 2014

The one-off sale revenue results in AACB's consolidated
financial statements showing a considerable increase

in both operating iIncome as well as bottomn fine profit
As such it 1s an important matter 1n our audit of AACB's
2014 consohdated financial staterments

Our audit response

We have read and assessed the sale documentation and
the accounting treatment of the sale revenue and the
associate accounting for the remaining stake of 25%
We also have gained a further understanding of the
overall transaction and background as part of our audit
work through discussing the sale process, the relevant
negotiations and the resulting sale price with AACB
management

Our observation

The sale has been accurately accounted for in the 2014
financiais including appropriate disclosure on the matter
in note 19 1n accordance with IFRS

Reliability and continuity of the information technology
and systems

AACB i1s heavily dependent on its {T-infrastructure for the
continuity of its operations The Bank makes significant
investments in 1ts IT systems and —processes as it Is
continuously iImprowving the efficiency and effectiveness
of the IT-infrastructure and the rehability and continuity
of the electronic data processing For exampie to
remediate identified weaknesses and inefficiencres
and to accommodate the ongoing regulatory changes
imposed on the banking industry ke CRD IV/CRR

We have therefere identified this as a key audit matter

Our audit response

We have assessed the reliability and continuity of the
electronic data processing, as far as necessary within
the scope of our audit For that purpose we included
IT-auditors in our audit team QOur procedures included
the assessment of developments in the IT-domain and
testing of the relevant internal controls with respect to
IT-systems and -processes

®
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Our observation

Cur test procedures on the design and operating
effectiveness of IT control measures, did not result In
significant findings on the reliability and continuity of
the electronic data processing for the purpose of the
audit of the financia! statements

Responsibilities of the Managing Board and the

Supervisory Board for the consolidated annual

financial statements

The Managing Board ts responsible for

» the preparation and far presentation of the consolidated
and company annual financial statements in accordance
with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Cvil
Code, and for the preparation of the Managing Board
Report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Netherlands Civil Code, and

» such internal control as the Managing Board determines
IS necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
and company annyal financial statements that are free
from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermror

As part of the preparation of the consolidated and
company annual financial statements, the Managing
Beard 1s responsible for assessing the company’s ability
to continue as a going concern Based on the financial
reporting frameworks mentioned, management should
prepare the consolidated annual financial statements
using the going cancern basis of accounting unless the
Managing Board either intends to iquidate the company
Or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so The Managing Board should disclose events
and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on
the company's ability to continue as a going concern In
the consolidated annual financial statements

The Supervisory Board I1s responstble for overseeing the
Bank's financial reporting process

Our Responsibilities for the Audit of the
consolidated annual financial statements

Our objective Is to plan and perform the audit to obtain
sufficient and appropnate audit evidence for our opinion
Qur audrt has been performed with a high, but not absolute,
level of assurance, which means we may not have
detected all errors and frauds For a further description of
our responsibiities in respect of an audit of consohdated
annual financial statements in general, we refer tec the
website of the professional body for accountants in the
Netherlands {(NBA) www nba nl/Site/English/Standard-
texts-auditors-report/

Report an Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

Report on the Managing Board report and the other

information

Pursuant to legal requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the

Netherlands Covil Code (concerming our abligation to report

about the Managing Board report and other information)

» We have no deficiencies to report as a result of our
examination whether the Managing Board report, to
the extent we can assess, has been prepared in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands
Civil Code, and whether the information as required
by Part 8 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code has
been annexed

» We report that the Managing Board report, 1o the
extent we can assess, Is consistent with the financial
statements



Engagement

We were appointed prior to 2008 for the first ime as
auditor of ABN AMRO Clearing Bank N V and operated
as auditor since then We were re-appointed as auditor of
ABN AMRO Clearing Bank N V through our appointment
as audit of ABN AMRO Bank N V and it's group entities
for the financial years 2013 and 2014 by the Special
General Meeting of Shareholders of 18 December 2012
In this role we perform the financial statements audit

Amstelveen, 21 May 2015
KPMG Accountants N V

CCJ Segers RA




80 <

‘

composition

of the Supervisory and Managing Board .

Composition of the Supervisory Board

Supervisory Board

At year-end 2014, the Supervisory Board consisted of the following members

R VC Schellens {Male)

JR Dyst {Male)

FM R van der Horst (Male)
AJBM Peek (Male)

A Rahusen (Male)

Composition of the Managing Board

Managing board

M C Jongmans (Male)

J B M de Boer (Male)

A Bolkovic {Male)

B Duinstra {Male)

L M R Vanbockrijck (Female)

Principal Responsibilities

Chairman

Chief Commercial Officer

Global Head Products & Services
Chief Risk Officer

Chief Financial Office




Rules on profit appropriation as set out in the
Articles of Association

The profit shown in the Profit and Loss Account as
adopted by the General Meeting of Shareholders has
been placed at the disposal of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

Profit appropriation

The ABN AMRO group policy 1s to upstream dividends
from subsidiaries where appropriate The dividend 2014
wall be based on our current and projected consolidated
capital ratio’s and local regulatory and exchange requirements
In combination with our growth strategy AACB proposes
not to pay any dividend due to hugher regulatory capital
requirements The final dividend amount will be decided
at the General Meeting of Shareholders in May 2015
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ABN AMRO Cleanng Bank NV
Gustav Mahlerlaan 10
1082 PP Amsterdam

Mailing address
PO Box 283
1000 EA Amsterdam
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